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DECISIONS

RELATING TO

THE PUBLIC LANDS.

MINING CLAIM~DISCOVERY—-LOCATION.
PorLAR CREEK CONSOLIDATED QUARTZ MINE.

A discovery of mineral must be treated as an entirety, and the proper basis of but
one location, and therefore, not susceptible of sub-division for the purpose of
two locasions having a common end line that bisects the discovery shaft.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office,J anuary
3, 1893.

On December 19, 1890, J. F. Bigelow made mineral entry No. 267 for
the Poplar Creek Consolidated Quartz Mine, Marysville, California,
comprising the Pine Nut and Gorilla locations, both made on January
3, 1888, and thereafter purchased by him.

You held the entry for cancellation on April 15, 1892, deciding that
both the locations in question were based upon one discovery. Bigelow
has appealed from your judgment to this Department.

It appears from the plat and tield notes that the south end line of
the Pine Nut location forms the north end line of the Gorilla location.
These locations were made, as we have seen, on the same day—one by
D. M. Bull and the other by Joseph Braden, the latter transferring his
claim to the former a few days later for a eonsideration stated to be one
doliar, and Buli transferred by ¢eed both the locations to Bigelow and
others. '

Neither of the location notices recites that the maker thereof has
discovered a vein or lode, but each states that the locator—
hereby gives notice that he claims . . . . . fifteen hundred (1,500) feet in
length by a width of three hundred (300) feet on each side of the center of that cer-

tain vein or ledge of quartz containing gold and other metals, situated ou the south
side of Poplar Valley, Quartz township, Plumas county, State of California.

Then follows a description of each.
The only account of any diseovery is found in the field notes of sur-
vey, and there if is stated that:

The improvements on the claim consist of a shaft on the lode at the line between
the two locations, which is about sixty feet in depth, and a tunnel which has been
driven towards the shaft, a distance of two hundred and twenty-five feet
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The whole cost and value of the improvements, in my opinion, amount to $2,000.
All the improvements on this claim have been made by Mr. Bigelow, th- applicant
for patent, but $1,200 has been expended by him on these improvements since his
purchase of the Pine Nut and Gorilla locations. These improvements are forthe
development of both locations, although the principal work is on the Pine Nut lo-
cation.

It is further stated that “the ledge, as developed, shows a thicknesg -
of from six to ten feet; is not easily traced upon the surface.”

Good faith is required of those who locate lands for minerals and
make entry thereof, and no valid locationr can be made unless there has
first been an actual discovery.

Section 2320 of the Revised Statutes provides that all mining claims,
located after the 10th day of May, 1872, whether located by one or
more persons, may equal, but shall not exceed, one thousand five hun-
dred feet in length along the vein or lode; but that no location of a
mining claimn shall be made until the discovery of the vein or lode
within the limits of the claim located. These located claims shall ex-
tend no more than three hundred feet on each side of the middle of the
vein at the surface.

The law evidently contemplates that the discoverer shall have a right
to locate his claim to the exclusion of others, and, if the discovery is
made by two parties, but one location can be made by them, for it is
but a single discovery. No man, nor set of men, being rational, would
discover a vein or lode and so describe the location as to make one of
the end lines run through the center of the discovery shaft, thus leav-
ing territory not located in which it was demonstrated ore existed, and
which might have been included in the description.

There was but one disecovery made npon which both these locations
were based. Both Bull and Braden may have discovered the vein or
lode, but each could not claim the discovery as his own. It was one
discovery made by two men, and only entitled the two, or either of
them, to make one. location. If the law could be so construed as to
allow two locations in a case like this, it would also have to be held
that one discovery would entitle the discoverers to make four locations,
placing one-fourth of the discovery to the credit of each. The law is
not susceptible of any such a construction. A discovery is a whole,
and may not be divided and parceled out among the discoverers.

Attorneys for appellant have cited the case of Larkin ». Upton (144
U. 8., 20,) as authority for holding that the one discovery shaft was
sufficient for two locations, but an examination of that case fails to
convince me that it is decisive of the question at issue. In that case it
is held that the top or apex of a vein must be within the boundaries of
the claim, in order to enable the locator to perfect his location and
obtain title. It was also held that this apex is not necessarily a point,
but may be a line of great length, and if this be true, and a portion of’
it can be found within the limits of a claim, that is sufficient discovery
to entitle the locator to obtain title. In that case there was a patented
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claim, and its south end line formed the north end line of the claim in
question, and the question arose as to whether there had been a dis-
covery on the south claim. The discovery shaft in that case was sunk
by the claimants of the unpatented claim very near, if not on the
bounilary line between the claims, and the owners of the patented c¢laim
asserted that the discovery was made on their side of the line, The
jury below rendered a special finding, to the effect that the vein or
lode was discovered south of the line and within the limits of the un-
patented claim, and that the top or apex of such vein was not within
the limits of the patented claim, and the supreme court affirmed the
court below in its judgment that there was a valid discovery. In that
case there were adverse interests, and the only question decided was
as to whom the benefit of a disecovery inured, while in the case at bar
no discovery has been made on either of the locations, except in one
shaft, and it is not a question here as to which of these locators is en-
titled to the benefit of the discovery, but as to whether the two locators
by combining may initiate two claims. In that case one claim had
been located on a discovery made doubtless at some distance from the
boundary line and had been patented, while in this a right is sought
to be initiated to claim two locations upon but a single discovery. It
is a plain attempt to evade the law and secure a mineral claim, three
thousand feet in length, where the law would allow but one thousand
five hundred feet.

A single discovery should not be construed into two diseoveries, in
order to support two locations, by merely running an imaginary line
through the discovery point.

Your judgment is accordingly affirined.

RAILROAD LANDS—ACT OF JANUARY 13, 1881.

TURNER v. SOUTHERN Paciric R. R. Co.

The right of purchase accorded by the act of January 13, 1881, can not be exercised
by one who is qualified to take the land in question under the timber culture
law, where said land is subject to such appropriation.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
3, 1893.

This controversy involves the E. § of the NE. £, the NW. % of the
NE. £, and the NE. { of the NW. 1 of Sec. 31, T. 6 N., R. 4 W., 8. B. M.,
Los Angeles land district, California.

You report that said land is within the limits of the indemnity with-
drawal made in 1867, for the benefit of the Southern Pacific Railroad
Company, under the grant of July 27, 1866 (14 Stat., 292), which with-
drawal was revoked by departmental order of August 15,1887, (6 L. D.,
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93), and the lands embraced therein restored to the public domain,and
that said lands were opened to entry on the 7th of October, 1887.

On said 7th of October, 1837, the Southern Pacific Railroad Company
filed its indemnity selection No. 29, which embraced the whole of said
section 31. On the same day, Robert Turner made application to pur-
chase the land under the act of January 13, 1881, (21 Stat., 315).

The local officers transmitted both these applications to your office
for instructions, and on the 16th of June, 1888, you held Turner’s appli-
cation for allowance, and the railroad’s selection for cancellation. The
company appealed to the Department, and on the 19th of September,
1890, it was held that the record failed to disclose whether Turner’s
application to purchase, or the company’s application to select, was
first filed, but as the company’s selection had been received and re-
corded, its rights could not be summarily disposed of upon ex-parte
affidavits. A hearing was therefore ordered, for the purpose of giving
Turner an opportunity to offer testimony in support of his allegations,
and the company to submit evidence in support of its selection.

Such hearing took place before the local officers on the 18th of De-
cember, 1890, and their decision was rendered on the 22d of May, 1891,
From the testimony, they found that Turner lived on the land from
January 1, 1887, until after the date of his application to purchase;
that he had improvements of considerable value thereon, which he had
purchased in large part from a former occupant; that the land was
practically devoid of timber, and clearly subject to entry under the
timber culture law; that the selection of the railroad company was
filed as early as ten o'clock, a. m., October 7, 1887, and the application
of Turner about noon of the same day. They concluded that Turner
was not qualified to enter the land under the law governing his appli-
cation, and that the selection by the Southern Pacific Railroad Com-
pany was a valid one.

This decision was reversed by you on the 25th of November, 1891,
and an appeal by the company from your decision, again brings the
case to the Department.

It was only persons who were not authorized to enter the land under
the homestead, pre-emption, or timber culture laws of the United States,
who were authorized to purchase it under the act of January 13, 1881.
The provisions of that act were as follows:

That all persons who shall have settled and made valuable and permanent im-
provements upon any odd-numbered section of land within any railroad withdrawal
in good faith and with the permission or license of the railroad company for whose
benefit the same shall have been made, and with the expectation of purchasing of
such company the land so settled upon, which land so settled upon and improved,
may, for any cause, be restored to the public domain, and who, at the time of such
restoration, may not be entitled to enter and acquire title o such land under the
pre-emption, homestead, or timber culture acts of the United States, shall be per-

mitted, at any time within three months after such restoration, and under such rules
and regulations as the Commissioner of the General Land Office may prescribe, to
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purchase not to exceed one hundred and sixty acres in extent of the same by legal
snbdivisions, at the price of two dollars and fifty cents per acre, and to receive
patents therefor.

As to the amount of timber upon the section which embraces the land
in question, only two witnesses testified. One was Turner, the claim-
ant, and the other was Swarthout, one of his corroborating witnesses.
In answer to the question: How much timber and what kind of timber
is there growing on this whole section of land? his answer was: There
are about ten or twelve trees; three of them are cottonwood, and the
rest willows; all are of a scrubby nature. He further testified that
there were no other trees growing on the section.

Harley Swarthout, his corroborating witness, in his testimony,; in
answer to the question: Is there any timber on section 31% answered:
“ There are a few scattering trees; can’t tell the number; afew cotton-
woods and some willows; most of them have been set out by people, I
think.,” This being all the evidence in the case on the subject of tim-
ber upon the section, I think the local officers were justified in saying:
¢ Tt is also clear, from the testimony, that the land is such as may be
entered under the timber culture act.”

The evidence shows that Turner had exercised his rights under the
homestead law, and that he had moved from his patented homestead
to the land in question, which prevented him from acquiring it under
the pre-emptionlaw. It appears, however, that he was qualified to take
land under the timber culture law, and that this Iand was subject to
entry under such law.

In the 7th paragraph of the circular of instructions, issued by your
office, and approved by the Department, in connection with the act of
January 13, 1881, (5 L. D., 165), it was said, if the applicant ¢“is quali-
fied to make either a homestead, pre-emption, or timber culture entry,
and the land is subject to the entry he is qualified to make, then he is
not allowed to make an entry under this act.” In the case of Benjamin
H. Eatou (8 L. D., 344), it was held that ¢ A purchaser under said act
must show actual settlement on the land, and that he is not entitled to
acquire title under the pre-emption, homestead, or timber culture law.”

In view of the provisions of the law quoted, and the circular and de.
cision cited, and the showing made by the evidence in the case, that
Turner was qualified to make timber-culture entry, and that the land
in question was subject to such entry it is clear that he was not quali-
fied to purchase the land under the act of January 13, 1881. This ren-’
ders a further consideration of the case, and of the questions raised,
unnecessary. -The decision appealed from isreversed, and the selection
by the Southern Pacific Railroad Company will be allowed to remain in
foree, unless there are objections thereto, other than Turner’s claim.
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HOMESTEAD CONTEST-RELINQUISHMENT.

CHATTEN v. WALKER.

The execution of a relinquishment is not in itself sufficient to warrant the cancella-
tion of an entry, but may be properly considered with other facts in determin-
ing the bona fides of the entryman,

First Assistant Seeretary Cbandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 4, 1893,

The land involved in this appeal is lots 3 and 4, and E. §, SW. £,
Sec. 30, T. 21 8., R. 10 W, Larned, Kansas, land district.

It is shown by the record that Henry A. Walker made homestead
entry of said land July 31, 1888. On March 19, 1889, Edgar L. Chat-
ten filed an affidavit of contest, alleging that the claimant—
has wholly abandoned said tract; that said tract is not settled upon and ecultivated
bysaid party as required by law, and that the same is held for speculative purposes,
and that the said Henry A. Walker has attempted at different times to sell said tract
of land and has relinquished the same.

A hearing was had; the testimony of the contestant having been
taken by deposition, and that of the claimant submitted before the
local officers, and as a result thereof they found infavorof the contest-
ant. Claimant appealed and you by letter of December 3,1801, affirmed
their decision, whereupon he prosecutes this appeal, assigning as error,
substantially that your decision is against the law and evidence.

‘When this case was called for trial, on June 4, 1889, the attorney for
contestant, made a demand on the defendant for an inspeetion and
permission to takea copyof his receiver’s duplicate receipt for his home-
stead entry No. 10789, dated July 31, 1888, for the land above described,
together with all writings endorsed on the back thereof. This demand
was stated to be for the purpose of using the receipt and the endorse-
ments thereon as evidence. This was objected to and refused by the
defendant. Theloeal officers, in passing upon the demand held that—

The execution of a rélinquishment does not constitute a cause of action and a pro-
duction of the receipt showing that a relinquishment had been executed would be
immaterial, therefore the application is denied.

The contestant then applied for and secured a continuance to take
depositions, by which it is shown by Charles H. Moore

that on or about March 12, 1889, he prepared and acknowledged a relinquishment of
the land embraced in Walker’s homestead; he thinks the relinquishment was writ-
ten on the back of the receipt but is not certain; he did not give any reason for re-
linquishing it; I gave it to him.

On cross-examination, he says:

I never saw the land; I will not testify positively as to what piece of land he re-
linquished; do not remember the numbers,

Q. Did not Chatten tell you that the object in bringing this contest was because
defendant owed the firm of Chatten Brothers and that the sole object was to foree
Walker to pay the defendant?
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A. A party who, I think, was the younger Chatten told me after the contest was
brought that they thought they had him in a place that this might effect a settle-
ment with him. He told me that Walker owed them some money.

A. J. Blackwood, an attorney, on direct examination testified:

I took Brown’s acknowledgment to a deed about March 18, 1889; did not prepare
it nor do I know to whom it was made; Brown and Walker came to my office about
that date, -and Brown handed me a deed which he acknowledged before me, and I
returned it to him, The deed was for Illinois land and from the conversation X
gathered that there was a trade pending between Walker and Brown; that is,
Walker was trading his homestead for the Illinoisland. Brown did not deliver
the deed in my presence, nor did I see any relinquishment of a homestead.

I do not remember the conversation in full but my mind was impressed with the
fact that they were trading as before stated.

On cross-examination he testified that one of the Chattens—Edgar—wanted him
to see if he could fix up a claim that they—Chatten Brothers—had against Walker.
He also told of a conversation he had with them about this deed, but says he gave
them but little satisfaction.

‘When the case was again called at the local office, plaintiff offered in
evidence a certified copy of a deposition of Wm. Brown, said to have
been taken in a case entitled ¢ Lafayette Holmes ». Sheldon Stoddard
et al., which deposition” it is said by counsel, ¢ relates largely to the
matters at issue in this case.,” He also renewed his motion to require
the defendant to produce his receiver’s receipt.

On defendant’s objecting to these the register held that the copy 6f
depositions was “irregular and incompetent but under rule 41, of the
rules of practice, can not be excluded from the record,” and on the mo-
tion held that either party may demand of the opposite an inspection
of any paper thought to be material: “the party may consent or re-
fuse, but in the event of his refusal to comply with the demand all
sworn testimony in relation to the same may be taken as true,” Here
the contestant rested, when defendant moved ¢ that this case be dis-
missed on the ground that plaintiff has not introduced evidence suffi-
cient to constitute a cause of action.” )

The register denied this motion, and required the defendant to sub-
mit testimony in defense. This ruling was excepted to, is preserved in
the record and is now urged here.

I do not think the register erred 1 overruling this motion. It seems
to me there was sufficient testimony offered to require the defendant to
be put upon his proof. While it is true that the fact of the execution
of a relinquishment is not of itself sufficient to warrant the canecella-
tion of an entry, yet it may be counsidered with other facts to show the
bona fides of the entryman.

But I can not concur with your judgment on the facts.

The evidence on behalf of the defendant shows that he had about
forty acres under cultivation; about one hundred fenced, a good house
and other improvements of the value of about $600; that he had lived
with his family continuously on the land; that he was largely in debt
and among others of his creditors was the firm of Chatten Brothers,
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of which the contestant is a member; that negotiations had been pend-
ing for some time by which he hoped to pay them, but that they had
failed. The defendant admits that he executed a relinquishment to
the land as the result of a trade he was trying to make with one Brown,
and that Brown had executed a deed to him or his wife, for some land
in Illinois; that in addition to the Illinois land Brown was to pay the
claim of Chatten Brothers; that Brown took the relinquishment to
the local office to see if he could make an entry on the land, when he
was informed of this contest; he then returned the relinquishment to
the defendant and the trade was dropped. This is not sufficient to
sustain the charges in this case. Blank ». Center, 11 L. D., 597.

I can not conclude from these facts that there was any intention on
the part of the entryman to hold the land for speculative purposes.
‘On the contrary, I am impressed with his good faith in holding the
land and improving it under the adverse circumstances, and 1 do not
think the fact that he tried to dispose of it for the sole purpose of
effecting a composition with his creditors, should be construed as a
lack of good faith.

Your judgment is therefore reversed.

RES JUDICATA-MINERAL LAND—-PREFERENCE RIGHT.
DORNEN ». VAUGHN.

An order of cancetlation is final as to the rights of the entryman in the absence of
appeal, and no right under the cancelled entry can be subsequently asserted as
against the intervening adverse claim of another.

The preferred right of entry accorded a successful contestant by the act of May 14,
1880, may properly extend to an agricultural claimant who successfully contests
a mineral claim, and clears the record thereof.

"A bona fide pre-emption claim, lawfully initiated prior to the repeal of the pre-emp-
tion law, is protected by the terms of the repealing statute. .

Tirst Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, Jaruary 5, 1893.

On May 3, 1882, Mary Dornen made homestead entry (No. 3578) for
lot 2, or W, § of SW. 1and W.4 of SE. § of SW. } of Sec.18, T, 12 N.,
R. 83, M. D. M., containing 99.71 acres, at Sacramento, California.

By your letter of November 16, 1882, said entry was held for can-
cellation as to the SW. £ of SW. £, and the W. 4 of SE. £ of SW. § of
said section, as being mineral in character and subject to disposal only
under the mining acts of Congress, and sixty days were allowed for
appeal. No appeal was taken, and said entry was cancelled as to said
mineral part by your letter of May 14, 1883.

On June 29, 1888, Charles F. Vaughn filed a petition to be allowed
to show the non-mineral character of said last mentioned tract. He
also applied to file a pre-emption declaratory statement therefor.
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A hearing was ordered on said petition for October 11, 1838, when
Vaughn appeared with his witnesses. Valentine, the mineral claimant,
also appeared by counsel. Said Dornen also appeared with witnesses,
and filed an affidavii, in which she asked leave to offer evidence in aid
of the efforts of said Vaughn to show the non-mineral character of said
land and claimed the right to have her said homestead entry restored
80 a8 to cover said tract, A compromise was effected between Vaughn
and the mineral claimant, and the latter withdrew from the contest.

The loeal officers held that the tract was agricultural,and that Vanghn
should be permitted to enter the same under the agricultural laws.

By your letter of July 24, 1889, their decision was sustained so far
as it adjudged the land to be agricultural, and the case was closed as
between Vaughn and the mineral claimant. A hearing was ordered to
determine the rights of Mary Dornen, and she and Vaughn appeared
on October 15, 1889, and submitted testimony.,

On January 20, 1890, the local officers held—

1. That the order of cancellation of H. E. 3578, in so far as traet in controversy is
included, remains in force, 2. That upon payment of legal fees and commissions,
Charles F. Vaughn be allowed to enter said tract under the agricultural laws of the
United States.

Their decision was affirmed by your letter of December 10, 1891. An
appeal now brings the case before e,

The grounds of appeal are specified as follows:

Appellant exeepts to the rulings appealed from for the reason that the homestead
of appellant was, when made, avalid and subsisting entry, subject only to the claims
of the governmeut thereto as mineral land, and that when the claim of the govern-
ment as mineral land was shown to be without foundation, her right thereto sprang
into full vigor.

For the further reason that her cultivation of a part of the land embraced. in the
entry was a sufficient compliance with the law as to continuity of eclaim, and
cultivation, coupled with the undisputed fact that she always claimed it.

For the further reason that there is in the record no evidence of abandonment;
and no evidence that she slept upon her rights; but on the contrary abundant evi-
dence that if she had attempted at an earlier day to disprove the mineral she would
have failed by reason of the strong miners’ organizations always ready to step in
and prove anything with reference to such matters.

When the appellant failed to appeal from the decision of November
16, 1882, holding her entry for cancellation for the tract in controversy,
she acquiesced in that decision, and it became final as to her said right
to the land. The question of her said right became res judicata, and she
is barred from asserting any further right to the land under the entry,
even if said decision was erroneous, in order to defeat an intervening
adverse claim. Wesley A. Cook (4 L. D., 187); Machride v. Stockwell
{11 L. D., 416); Wells on Res Adjudicata, Chap. 1, See. 6.

The judgment in favor of Vaughn in his contest did not have the effect
to vacate the former judgment against her, which still remained of
record. These two judgments were rendered in separate and distinet
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contests, and between different parties. The judgment against her set-
tled her right to the land at the time it was rendered, and continued in
force against her until set aside. 1t appears that she soregarded it by
applying to make final proof for her north forty at different times.

When Vaughn brought his contest to determine the character of the
land, and the mineral claimant, after the admission of testimony, with-
drew from the contest, and the local officers decided that the land was
agricultural, from which no appeal was taken, the land became vacant
public land, open to entry by the first legal applicant. At that time
Vaughu had applied to file a declaratory statement, and the appellant
had applied to have her original entry restored. Both parties claimed
possession and made improvements on the land.

By the decision f this Department rendered April 20, 1872, in the
case of John B. Hill, pre-emption eclaimant, against certain mineral
affiants, the character of the E. 4 and SW. % of SW, } of said section
18, was adjudged to be mineral.

The same tract was again held to be mineral in your said decision of
November 16, 1882, in which the entry of Mary Doruen was held for
cancellation as to the part embracing said tract.

Yaughn’s contest and declaratory statement embraced only the SW,
4 of the SW. 1 of said Sec. 18, or twenty acres less than said tract em-
braced in the canceled part of Mary Dornen’s entry adjudged mineral,
as above stated.

At the time of the hearing on Vaughn’s contest, S. D. Valentine had
located a lode claim designated as the ¢“88 mine” on a part of the forty
acres contested by Vaughn, and Valentine was then the only claimant
on record of any part of said land. Vaughn therefore had to clear
the land of the mineral character imposed upon it by said decisions
and also clear it from said lode eclaim. This he successfully accom-
plished by his contest.

The government, through its proper officers, had decided that this
tract was mineral land in two decisions, with an interval of ten years
between them against two separate claimants, and, therefore, was in-
terested as a party adversely to the contest initiated by Vaughn, while
Valentine was adverse clajmant to a part of said tract.

The second section of the act of May 14, 1880, (21 Stat., 140), gives a
preference right of entry to any person who has “contested, paid the
land office fees, and procured the cancellation of any pre-emption, home-
stead, or timber cultuce entry.”

In Fraser . Ringgold, (3 L. D., 69), it was held that a desert land
entry was a ‘“pre-emption entry” within the meaning of the above
statute. Measured By the definition established in that case, a min-
eral entry is also a “pre-emption” within the broad meaning of the
term. In Ringsdorf ». The State of Iowa (4 L. D., 497), the above act
was beld to apply to a contest against a swamp land selection by the
State of Iowa.
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In Bunger v. Dawes (9 L. D., 329), an entry of XKansas Indian trust
land was held to be a “pre-emption” within the meaning of said act,
and the successful contestant euntitled to a preference right of entry.
In McGee ». Ortley (14 L. D., 523) a location of Sioux half-breed scrip
was held to be a “ pre-emption,” and the suceessful contestant entitled
to a preference right of . entry. The said act is a remedial and benefi-
cial statute, and such statutes ¢ have always been taken and expounded
by equity; witre the strict letter, but not, it is well and wisely said,
contra the letter.,” (Dwarris on Stat., 623).

The different land laws which provide for the purchase of public
lands by individuals form a general land law system and should be
construed in pari materia so far as can be done consistently, and the
rulings of the Department in relation thereto should be harmonious
and uniform so far as possible. The purchase by a mineral claimang
of public land under the mineral laws is a “pre emption” in as true a
sense as other forms of purchase which have been so held in the cases
above cited. The act of May 14, 1830, rewards one who has success-
fully contested an entry of the class therein specified, by giving him a
preference right to enter within a specified period, This is the benefit
conferred by the act, and in equity it applies to Vaughn in this cases
who seeks to pre-empt the land in question, and has successfully shown
its agricultural character in his contest.

On the one hand the appellant slept upon her rights, if she had any,
from the date of the partial cancellation of her entry in 1882 until Octo-
ber 11, 1888, or nearly six years. On the other hand, Vaughn hasused
due diligence in prosecuting his contest and settling upon and improv-
ing the land, and his applieation is prior in time to hers. The law does
not favor the negligent, but the diligent. The excuse made for the
appellant’s delay, that she could not have succeeded if she had brought
her application, earlier because the miners would have sworn her out of
eourt, can hardly be accepted in the absence of any attempt on her part
to prove its truth by a contest, and in view of the fact that Vaughn’s
attempt was successful in his contest.

The pre-emption laws have been repealed by the act of March 3, 1891,
(26 Stat., 1095). The tender by Vaughn of a declaratory statement be-
fore the passage of the act, in connection with his settlement, residence
and improvements upon said land, constituted a “bona fide claim law-
fully initiated before the passage” of said act, within the meaning of
the fourth section thereof, and said claim “may be perfected upon due
compliance with law,” as if said aet had not been passed.

Your judgment is affirmed.
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CONFLICTING SETTLEMENT CLAIMS—NOTICE.
MiLES ». WALLER.

A claim based on settlement upon, and improvement of a tract, with residence upon
a contiguous tract relates back to the date when residence is established upon
said contiguous tract.

‘The notice of claim given by settlement and improvements extends only to the
guarter section upon which they are situnated as detined by the publie surveys.

A written notice of a settlement elaim is of no validity in the absence of the settle-
ment and residence required by law.

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 6, 1893.

I have considered the case arising upon the appeal of Frank M. Miles
from your decision of March 3, 1892, in the case of said Miles against
John Waller, involving the NW. 1 of the SW. 1 of Sec. 28, T, 34 N, R.
37 E., Spokane land district Washington.

Two surveys of the township were made. The first was never ac-
cepted; the second was made in June, 1888, approved by the surveyor-
general, and accepted by you, some time within a year thereafter—the
exact date not being shown by any of the records transmitted with the
case.

When the land office opened, on the morning of June 23, 1890, both
parties named were in waiting to make a homestead entry-—Miles of
the NE. 1 of the NE. } of Sec. 32, the E. 1 of the SH. % of Sec. 29, and
the N'W. 1 of the SW. 1 of Sec. 28, said township and range, and Waller
of the SW. % of the NW. £, and the N. } of the SW. } of Sec. 28, It
will be seen that the two conflict as to the NW, £ of the SW. % of Sec.
28,

A hearing to determine their respective rights was held on July 8,
1890.

The local officers decided in favor of Waller. Miles appealed to
your office, and you affirmed their decision. Miles now appeals to the
Department. ‘

The question is complicated by certain transaction between the de-
fendant, Waller, and one Floyd Lawson. Both were at one time
(prior to the survey of the township) desirous of obtaining the SW. %
of the NW., 1 of Sec. 28 (the forty-acre tract lying directly north of the
one in controversy). Being on amicable terms, they discussed the mat-
ter of making joint entry of the same when it should become subject to
entry, but learned that there was no provision of law that would per-
mit such joint entry, Thereupon, Lawson withdrew all claim to said
tract. Waller moved thereto from the forty-acre tract next west of it
(the SE. % of the NE. £ of Sec. 29); and Lawson—when he made entry,
after survey—included the traet which Waller had thus moved from
and abandoned.
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Counsel for contestant alleges that your deecision was in error

In holding that Lawson’s legal settlement ever extended to the forty acres in dis-

ute;

? In ilolding that Lawson did or could give his possession and settlement to said
tract to Waller;

In holding by implication that Waller’s alleged rights in and to the forty in dis-
pute related back to the alleged settlement thereon by Lawson in 1883.

Your letter, in its statement of the case, uses the expression that
Lawson ¢ gave his possession and settlement of said tract to Waller;”
but it is not clear that your decision is based upon that assertion. It
will be conceded that Waller’s right to the tract, if any, must be founded
upon and date from his own settlement thereon.

He further alleges that you were in error—

In not holding that the attempt of Lawson and Waller to hold a forty-acre tract
of surveyed land jointly, upon which neither had his residence, was illegal, and
could not serve to make the forty in conflict contiguous to the remainder of Waller’s.
claim whereon were his residence and improvements.

The parties named learned, upon inquiry of other persons better
versed than themselves in land law, that such joint entry would be
illegal, and made no attempt to carry their project into effect. It will
be conceded that this merely contemplated joint entry and could not
make the forty in conflict contiguous to the remainder of Waller’s
claim. Nor do I understand that your decision so held.

Counsel claims that you were in error—

In not holding that Waller’s original settlement elaim was made up of non-con-
tiguous tracts, the forty in dispute being isolated from the other tracts upon which
his residence, cultivation and improvements were made.

It will be conceded that Waller’s right to this forty-acre tract can
not relate back of the date when the remainder of his claim upon which
his residence and improvements were located, became contiguous
thereto. '

Admitting the positions assumed by the contestant, as above set
forth, to be substantially correct, it remains to be decided which was
the prior settler on the forty-acre tract in controversy.

According to the contestant’s testimony, the defendant abandoned
the SE. f of the NE. 1 of Sec. 29 (which was a part of his original
claim), and removed to the SW. 1 of the NW. } of Sec. 28 (which was
not a part of his original claim), on April 20, 1890. The forty-acres in
controversy was contiguous to this, and from that date forward was
subject to settlement and entry by him in connection with the remain-
der of his claim—unless some one had initiated a claim prior to that
date, or afterward established a right which related back to a period
prior to that time,

For years before April 20, 1890, the defendant had been improving
the tract in controversy; and these improvements were upon it at the
date of his removal to the tract north of and adjacent to it, and con-
tinued until the date of simultaneous application to enter. Defendant
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testifies that he broke four acres of the tract in contest in the fall of
1886; that he put it into crop in the spring of 1887; that he plowed
and cropped more in subsequent years; that he fenced jn nearly the
whole of it. This is corroborated by witnesses Overman, Lawson and
Rice. ‘

It is clear that his claim to the tract in controversy, based upon
settlement and improvement of the same, with residence upon a con-
tiguous forty-acre tract, could relate back to the date of his establish-
ment of residence upon such contiguous tract—April 20, 1890,—unless
some prior claim had attached.

The next question to be considered is, whether the contestant had
initiated any claim to the tract in controversy prior to April 20, 1890.

The contestant, Miles, originally claimed as his homestead the NE.Z
of the NE. 1 of Sec. 32, the E.  of the SE. % of Sec. 29, and the NW,
% of the SE. £ of Sec. 29. Upon the last mentioned forty-acre tract
he built a house in 1883, and resided therein until after the second sur-
vey (in 1888). He then concluded to drop the forty upon which he had
been residing, and claim the forty in contest—upon which the de-
fendant had been for some years cultivating in part, and improving,
as hereinbefore set forth. But he did not settle upon orin any manner
improve the tract. At the date of his application to enter—indeed, at
the date of the hearing—he had no improvements upon it, unless it
were a small amount of fencing. He claims to have enclosed a piece
in the southwest corner, ‘from one and one-half to two rods square.”
The United States deputy surveyor, however, does not think the fence
comes any further than to the line of the disputed tract. If any of
the fence is on the land, it is the result of the fact that the new survey
does not coincide precisely with the old, and so the fence that contest.
ant intended to build on the line upon resurvey proves to be a rod or
two over it, upon land unclaimed by him at the time be built it. A
fence put up by mistake on what was supposed by all concerned to be
the line between two claims would certainly not be such an “‘improve-
ment” as wounld give its builder a right to the land on which it has
been mistakenly built.

It appears, therefore, that on June 23, 1890, when the two parties
presented their applications to enter the tract in controversy, Waller
had improved and cultivated it, and had been residing upon the adja-
cent forty-acre tract, which he included as a part of his entry, for more
than two months, while Miles had never cultivated any part of it, and
had no improvements upon it, unless one corner of his fencing had been
(unintentionally and by mistake) built so as to include a square rod or
two of one corner of it; while his residence, cultivation, and improve-
ments, were not only on another quarter-section, but another section.

It may be added that the notice of claim given by settlement and im-
provements, extends only to the quarter-section upon which they are
situated, as defined by the public surveys. L. R. Hall (5 L. D, 141);
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Reynolds ». Cole (ib., 555) Union Pac. BR. R. Co. v. Simmons (6 L. D,,
172); Hemsworth v, Holland (7 L. D., 76); Pooler ». Johnsou (13 L. D,
134); Shearer v. Rhone (ib., 480).

Immediately after the (second) survey Miles sent a written notice to
‘Waller, informing him that ke claimed the NW. % of the SW. % of Sec.
28, T.34 N., R.37E.,—the tract incontroversy. Butsuchwritten notifi-
cation is of no validity in the absence of the settlement and residence
required by law.

Your judgment in favor of Waller is sustained, and your decision
that his entry be held intact is affirmed.

INDIAN OCCUPANCY-SETTLEMENT RIGHT-—-ALLOTMENT.

LoNG J1M ». ROBINSON ET AL. AND CULTUS JIM ET AL.». CHAPPELLE
ET AL.

Lands actually included within Indian occupancy are not subject to settlement; and
a general order opening an Indian reservation does not operate to confer upon
claimants under the settlement laws any right to settle upon, or enter, lands that
are excluded from such appropriation by reason of Indian occupancy.

The provision contained in the agreement of July 7, 1883, for the protection of ‘“all
other Indians living on the Columbia reservation ” extends to Indians then living
on said reservation but not represented in the negotiation of said agreement;
and the failure of such Indians to elect within oue year whether they would
stay on said reservation, or remove to the Colville reservation, as provided in
the act of Congress ratifying said agreement, will not defeat their right to receive
allotments in accordance with said agreement.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
6, 1893.

On the 9th day of July, 1892, you considered the above entitled cases
on appeal of the Indians, and as the facts and legal questions involved
are so nearly alike in them, you treated them as one case.

The record shows that on the 28th day of November, 1890, Chelan
Bob (an Indian) filed in the local land office at Waterville, Washing-
ton, his application for the NW.Z%, N, £ SW. £, and lots 1, 2 and 3, of
See. 20, T. 27 N, R. 23 E., W. M., containing 337.60 acres.

On December 1, 1890, Cultus Jim (an Indian) filed in said local land
office, his application for the SE. 1 SE. 1, of Sec. 19, the 5. $ SW. 1 and
lot 4, of Sec. 20, and lots 2 and 3 of Sec. 29 of the same township and
range, containing 209,40 acres.

On the same day Long Jim filed in said office his application for the
NE. £, NE. £ SE. 4, and lot 1, of Sec. 11, W. &, Sec. 12, 1ot 1, of Sec. 14
and lots 1 and 2 of Sec. 13, T. 27 N, R. 22 E,, W. M., containing 525.30
acres.

All of the land filed for by Long Jim, except eighty acres, all filed
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for by Cultus Jim, except forty acres, and all of that filed for by Chelan
Bob, is claimed adversely to said Indians by white settlers, as follows:

February, 1889, A. W. La Chappelle made homestead entry for the
NE. 1 SW. 4, and lots 3 and 4, of said section 20, and lots 2 and 3 of
said section 29 of T. 27 N,,R. 23 E.

March 15, 1889, C. H. Ambercrombie made homestead entry for the
E. $ NW. { and lots 1 and 2 of said section 20, T. 27 N., R, 23 E.

July 5, 1890, Charles A. Barron made homestead entry covering the
NW.1 NW. £ of said section 20, SW. 1 SW. 1 of Sec. 17, and the S. 4
SE. 2 of See. 18, T. 27 N, R. 23 E.

July 14, 1890, Enos B, Peaslee made homestead entry for lot 1, NI,
1 SE. 1 and the S. § NE. £ of said Sec. 11, T. 27 N,, R. 22 E.

July 16, 1890, Harrison Williams made homestead entry for the E. 3
SE. £ of said Sec. 19, and the W. 4 of the SW. 1 of said Sec. 20.

October 17, 1890, Thomas R. Gibson made homestead entry for the
E. % of the SW. £, NW, 1 SW. £ and the SW. % SE. 1, of said section
12, T. 27T N,, R. 22 E.

On the 10th day of January, 1891, W, F. Allender made an affidavit
that he acted as the agent for Long Jim in making his application and
that the land embraced in Gibson’s entry was inadvertently included
in said application, and on the same day said entry was commuted to
cash entry No. 77,

September 17, 1889, Julius Larabee filed his declaratory statement
for the NW.  NE. 1, E. £ NE. } of said Sec. 19, and the SW. ; NW. 1
of said section 20, and on January 19, 1891, Edson E. Larabee made
homestead entry for the same traet.

Christopher Robinson (date not given) made homestead application
for the SW. 4 SW. £ of said section 12, and lots 1, 2, and 3, of said sec-
tion 13, T. 27T N,, R. 22 E,

Under instructions from you, a hearing was had hefore the register
and receiver at Waterville, Washington, within whose district the land
in eontroversy is situated, to determine the matter of these claims for
allotments. At the time set for the trial all the parties appeared before
the local officers and submitted their testimony.

On the 13th day of April, 1891, the register and receiver found in
favor of the several homestead entrymen and recommended that the
applications of Chelan Bob, Cultus Jim and Long Jim to take the lands
in controversy under the Moses treaty, should be denied.

From their decision the Indian claimants appealed.

On the 9th day of July, 1892, you reversed the judgment of the local
officers, and held that said Indian applicants are entitled to have allot-
ments of lands made to them in severalty in quantities and manner pro-
vided in the agreement of July 7,1883, and that the right of said sev-
eral white claimants is subordinate and subject to the prior superior
right of said Indians.

An appeal by the white entrymen from your judgment brings the
controversy here for determination.
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All of the land in controversy was formerly embraced in the Colum-
bian Indian reservation and these Indian claimants are seeking to avail
themselves of the benefits of an agreement dated July 7, 1883, signed
by the Secretary of the Interior and Commissioner of Indian Affairs,
on the part of the government, and on the part of the Indians by Chiefs
Moses, Tonasket and Sar-Sarp-Kin, (See Report of the Commissioner
of Indian Affairs for 1883, pp. LIX,, LX X, and LXXI.) Said agreement
provided, among other things, that the government would,—
secure to Chiet Moses and his people, as well as to all other Indians who may go on
to the Colville reservation and engage in farming, equal rights aud protection.

That until he and his people are located permanently on the Colville reserva-
tion his status shall remain asnow. . . . . All other Indians now living on the
Columbia veservation shall be entitled to six hundred and forty acres, or one square
mile of land, to each head of a tamily or male adult, in the possession and owner-
ship of which they shall be guaranteed and protected. Orshould they move on to
the Colville reservation within two years, they will be provided with such farming
implements as may be required, provided they surrender all rights to the Columbia
reservation.

This agreement was accepted, ratified and confirmed by the act of
Congress approved on the 4th day of July, 1884 (23 Stat., pp. 79 and
80), with the proviso:

That the Indians now residing on said Columbia reservation shall elect within one
year from the passage of this act whether they will remain npon said reservation
on the terms therein stipulated or remove to the Colville reservation: And provided
Sfurther, that in case said Indians so elect to remain on said Columbia reservation
the Secretary of the Interiorshall cause the quantity of land therein stipulated to be
allowed them to be selected in as compact form as possible, the same when so selected
to be held for the exclusive use and oceupation of said Indians, and the remainder
of said reservation to be thereupon restored to the publie domain, and shall be dis-
posed of to actnal settlers under the homestead laws only, etc.

At the time said agreement was made, and at the time it was so rat-
ified by Congress, it appears there was a band of Indians, numbering
some forty or fifty persons, who resided upon, and near to, the north
bank of the Chelan river and Chelan lake; which Indians recognized Eno-
mo-sit-za as their chief; that about the time said agreement was made
said chief was taken sick and died; they were claimed by Moses as part
of his people and so treated by the government; it further appears that
these Indian applicants are members of Eno-mo-sit-za’s band, and they
claim that said band owed no allegiance to Chief Moses, and that Moses
had noright or authority to negotiate for the sale of the lands occupied
by them. LongdJim—one of these applicants—is a son of the late Chief
Eno-mo-sit-za, and as such elaims to be the legitimate chief of said band.
The testimony clearly shows that this band, for upwards of thirty-five
years, have occupied the country along the north shore of Lake
Chelan, and the west bank of the Columbia river, as far north as the
Methon river, to an undefined distance westward; that since his father’s
death Long Jim, or as he is called by the Indians, ¢ In-amache Jim,”
has been recogmized by these Chelan Indians as their chief; that

12771—voL. 16 —2
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Sar-sarp-kin, Moses and Long Jim’s father were chiefs over different
portions of the eountry, and that Jim and his band regarded said chiefs
as equals. Jim’s father was sick when the agreement of July 7, 1883,
was entered into, and died shortly afterwards,thereupon Long Jim sue-
ceeded him as chief of said band. The testimony fails to show that
the Chelan Indians were followers of Chief Moses, or that he was

authorized to aect for them in making said agreement. As to the
occupancy of the lands in question by these Indians, it is clearly shown

that many of them have lived all their lives upon the land they now
claim, Long Jim testified that he was thirty-eight years old, a married
man, and was born, and had all his life, lived upon the Jand claimed by
him. Chelan Bob and Cultus Jim are married men; they have part of
the land embraced in their respective claims fenced in common; they
have cultivated a part of said lands for many years, and long before
La Chappelle or any other white man made any claim to said lands,
These Indians have raised stock, grass, small grain and vegetables on
their elaims. They belong to Long Jim’s band, and have persistently
held to their homes; claiming all the time that Moses had no right or
authority to act for them in any respect.

These Indian applicants, and others of the band, have not received
anything from the government under the Moses agreement, or other-
wise; they have clung to the homes of their ancestors and managed to
secure their own living by raising stock and tilling the soil independent
of government assistance.

This band, which was at one time an independent tribe, inhabiting
and occupying a large scope of territory along the Columbia and Che-
lan rivers, has had its occupancy narrowed down, from time to time,
until it seems to be limited to the traets on which some parts of the im-
provements of the individual members of the band are located. This
controversy involves the question as to whether these Indians have
any legal rights in or to the lands in controversy that the white settler
is bound to respeet. If the filing and entries of the white claimants
were made in violation of law or the instructions of the Land Depart-
ment, made pursuant to law, then said filing and entries must be can-
celed, and if this be done then it practically leaves the claims of the In-
dians ez parte to be settled between them and the government.

On the 31st day of May, 1884, the Department approved a circular
issued by the Commissioner of the General Land Office in which it was
gaid: (See 3 L. D., 371.)

Information having been received from the War Department of attempts of white
men to dispossess non-reservation Indians along the Columbia River and other
places within the Military Department of the Columbia of the land they have for
years occupied and cultivated, and similar information having been received from
other sources in reference to other localities where land is occupied by Indians who
are making efforts to support themselves by their own labor, you are hereby in-
structed to peremptorily refuse all entries and filings attempted to he made by oth-

ers than the Indian occupants upon lands in the possession of Indians who have
made improvements of any value whatever thereon.
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In order that the homes and improvements of such Indians may be protected, as
intended by these instructions, you are directed to ascertain by whatever means
may be at your command whether any lands in your district are occupied by Indian
inhabitants, and the locality of their possession and improvements as near as may
be, and to allow no entries of filings upon such lands. When the fact of Indian
occupaney is denied or doubtful, the proper investigation will be ordered prior to
the allowance of adverse claims. Where lands are unsurveyed no appropriation
will be allowed within the region of Indian settlements until the surveys have been
made and the land occupied by Indians ascertained and defined.

These instructions were re-issued on the 26th day of Oectober, 1887,
(See 6 L. D., 341) in which it was said:

The foregoing instruections apply to every land district and to all lands oceupied
by Indian inhabitants in any part of the public land States and Territories of the
United States.

It has Leen officially represented that these instructions are disregarded, and that
public land entries have been allowed upon lands on which Indian inhabitants have
their homes and improvements, and in some cases where the Indians have so resided
for a number of years, cultivating the soil and making the land their permanent
homes. The allowance of such entries is a violation of the instructions of this De-
partment, and an act of inhumanity to a defenseless people, and provoeative of vio-
lence and disturbance.

You are enjoined and commanded to strictly obey and follow the instructions of
the above circular and to permit no entries upon lands in the possession, occu-
pation and use of Indian inhabitants, or covered by their homes and improvements
and you will exercise every care and precaution to prevent the inadvertent allow-
ance of any such entries. It is presumed that you know or can ascertain the local-
ities of Indian possession and ocecupancy in your respective distriets, and you will
make it your duty to do so, and will avail yourselves of all information furnished
you by officers of the Indian service.

Surveyors-general will instruct their deputies to carefully and fully note all In-
dian oceupations in their returns of surveys hereafter made or reported, and the
same must be expressed upon the plats of survey.

The substance of these instructions is repeated in the general cireular
of your office approved February 6, 1892, on page 65.

In the case of Mission Indians ». Walsh, on review, (13 L. D., 269),
it was held that land subject to Indian occupancy can not be taken
under the settlement laws, and that an executive order creating a reser-
vation that exeludes the major portion of such land from the boundaries
thereof does not operate to confer settlement rights that could not
otherwise be obtained.

These circulars seem in spirit and letter-to completely cover the cases
at bar, and if it were not for the executive order of May 1, 1886, restor-
ing the lands to the public domain there would be no question but
what the filing and entries in question were illegal and void ab nitio.
The ruling in the Walsh case, supra, covers this point wherein it holds
that the legal effect of an executive order, restoring lands theretofore
withdrawn, is that it does not operate to confer any settlement rights
that could not otherwise be obtained. In other words such order does
not confer upon claimants under the pre-emption and homestead laws,
any right to settle on, file upon, or enter such lands as are excluded
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Afrom such filing, entry or settlement, by reason of its occupation by
Indian elaimants,

Inasmuch as there is no question of the occupancy of the land in
controversy by these Indians long prior to and at the time the filing,
settlements or entries of these claimants were made, it follows that
they must be canceled, in so far as they confliet with these Indiauns’
claims, which you are directed to cause to be done.

The only remaining question is whether these Indian applicants can
avail themselves of the benefits of the agreement of July 7, 1883, be-
tween Chief Moses, and the Secretary of the Interior which was con-
firmed by the act of Congress of July 4, 1884, supra. While these In-
dians were not parties to that agreement in the sense that they were
represented in making it in person or by any one authorized to act for
them, yet if they were in the position or occupied such & relation as to -
be included inits terms, I can see no legal reason, as between them and
the United States for the government withholding from them the full
benefits it agreed to bestow upon them. That agreement was the sol-
emn obligation of the United States made by its executive braneh and
ratified by Congress. Good faith and fair dealing demands that the
government perform its agreement in letter and in spirit.

It is a familiar and fundamental principle in the construction of con-
tracts, that the facts and surrounding cirenmstances attending the exe-
cution of a contract may be taken into consideration in construing it.

In connection with this agreement it appears that certain chiefs,
among them Moses, professedly representing different tribes of Indians
assumed to act for their people and in so far as their people’s rights were
concerned, their acts were binding. At the same time it appears now
as a fact that these Indians were then on the land and claiming to have,
and entitled in all fairness to the same rights to it as Moses and his co-
contractors had and claimed; the Secretary and Congress knew that it
was altogether likely that there were ¢ other Indians,” than those repre-
sented by the chiefs present when the agreement was made, upon the
reservation, whose rights should be carefully gnarded and protected by
the government. It was evidently the purpose of the Secretary and
Congress to provide for this contingency in the agreement wherein it
provides that—

All other Indians now living on«the Columbia reservation shall be entitled to 640

acres, or one square mile of land, to each head of family or male adult, in the posses-
sion and ownership of which they shall be guaranteed and protected.

This amounts to an absolute guaranty of the government, to the ex-
tent named, of the right to, and possession of, the lands in the posses-
sion of these Indian applicants, as they come clearly under the head of
“other Indians” living on the Columbia reservation.

The act of July 4, 1884, supra, provided that the Indians then living
on said reservation should elect within one year from the passage of the
act whether they would remain on said reservation on the terms therein
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stipulated or remove to the Colville reservation; and in case said In-
dians so elected to remain on said reservation the Secretary of the
Interior was to cause the quantity of land stipulated to be allowed to
them to he selected and held for the exclusive use and occupation of
said Indians. :

The register and receiver based their judgment against the Indian
claimants principally upon the fact that they had failed to elect, within
one year as to whether they would go on the Colville reservation or
take their allotments under the act of July 4, 1884, supra. The pro-
viso in said act requiring the election to be made in one year is ¢ that
Sar-sarp-kin and the Indians now residing on the Columbia reservation
shall elect, within one yéar from the passage of this act, whether they
will remain upon said reservation on the terms therein stipulated, or
remove to the Colville reservation.” This evidently refers to Sar-sarp-
kin and the Indians represented by him who were directly represented
by him in making the agreement and can not be held as binding on
these Indian applicants because they were not parties to nor repre-
sented in making said agreement.

It appears that in the spring of 1885 a special agent was sent to said
reservation to ascertain whether the Indians would remain on it or re-
move to the Colville reservation. It further appears that on July 23,
1885, said agent submitted a report of a trip to Lake Chelan pertaining
to allotments of lands to the Indians near saidlake, and on the Colum-
bia reservation. His report shows that somne of the Indians objected
to having surveys made; among those objecting was a young chief -
“ Winnemesclhie” or Chelan Jim, as he was more frequently called.
Said agent and this chief together with about twenty-five male adults
of his tribe had a conference upon the subject of their taking allofments
on the Columbia reservation, Said conference lasted more than two
days during which time the agent represented to the Indians the great
advantage of their taking allotments, to which the chief who acted as
spokesman for his band, replied in substance, that the Great Spirit
gave the lands which they were then living upon to his ancestors who
were buried wlhere they had always lived; that his people had always
lived at peace with the whites and had in no instance committed any
wrong against the life or property of their white neighbors; that they
had never asked or received anything from the government, and that
 all they asked was that they might be allowed, in the future as in the
past, to settle in peace upon the lands of their birthplace, and that the
Great Spirit would be displeased if he or his people took the course
advised by the agent.

The matter drifted along and it seems these Indians were removed to
the Colville reservation by the aid of the military authorities, and
three of the Indians were put in the agency jail for alleged insubordi-
nation, and kept there until released to attend the hearing below.
‘Charges against the Indians representing them to be drunken, worth-
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less and dangerous characters, denials of the same; counter-charges of
collusion among the whites to wrongfully deprive the Indians of their
rights, appear to have been made from time to time before the Indian
Office; all of which resulted in divers investigations and conflicting
reports of the officers charged therewith. The last two of these re-
ports, as appears, from the letter of the Commissioner of Indian Affairs
to you, dated January 21, 1892; one of Special Agent Litchfield, dated
January 24,1891, and one of Inspector Gardner, dated March 9, 1891,
both find that these Indian applicants are entitled to the land they
claim.

The record in the case, after it was appealed to you, was submitted
by you to the Indian Office and upon examination of it, the Commis-
sioner expresses the opinion that to allow these entries made by white
men “to stand and thelands covered thereby to pass to patent, would
be an act of injustice to an ignorant people, one that would be ealeu-
lated to provoke violence and disturbance.”

After a full and elaborate discussion and consideration of the record
and facts in the case, you held:

That said Indian applicants are entitled to have allotments of lands made to them
in severalty in quantities and manner provided in the agreement of July 7, 1883, and
that the right of said several white claimants above named to the land claimed by
them, is subordinate and subject to the prior and superior right of said Indians,

After a careful examination of the testimony and record in the case,

I am satisfied that your judgment is correct, and it is accordingly af-
firmed.

CONTEST—-PROCEEDINGS BY THE GOVERNMENT--RESIDENCE.
G1BBR 9. KENNY.

Proceedings on the adverse report of a special agent, are no bar to a subsequent con-
test against the entry in question on grounds presented by said report, where
such proceedings are abandoned without a hearing therein.

Residence can not be acquired nor maintained by going upon or visiting a claim
solely for the purpose of complying with the letter of the law. The act of going
upon the land, and the ocecupaney thereof, must concur with the intent to make
it a permanent home to the exclusion of one elsewhere.

Birst Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 6, 1893,

Stephen Kenny has appealed from your decision of March 3, 1892,
holding for cancellation his homestead entry for the B. # of the NE.
and E. ¢ of the SE. 1 of Sec. 3, T. 42 N, R. 10 E., Del Norte land dis-
triet, Colorado.

The entry was made May 6, 1884, In summer of 1887 an examina-
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tion was made by E. S. Bruce, a special agent of your office, which re-
sulted in an adverse report on November 21, 1887. On December 23,
same year, you held the entry for cancellation. The entryman asked
for a hearing, and by letter of Jannary 23, 1888, the local officers were
directed to inform him that it was granted. By reason of delays that
need not be set forth in detail, a hearing was never had; but Special
Agent Wells was directed to look into the matter. He reported that
one of the witnesses named in Agent Bruce’s report, George O. Simons,
was dead; that another witness, James Green, he was unable to find;
that the third witness, E. L. Jones, could only testify as to the ap-
pearance of the land as to improvement and cultivation, but knew
nothing of the facts as to residence. He added that in his opinion,
from inquiry in the neighborhood and from the affidavits of certain
witnesses, the entryman had complied with the law. Thereupon you,
on October 10, 1889, revoked the order for a hearing, and directed that
the entry remain intaect.

On May 17, 1890, he submitted final proof, when he was confronted
by George A. Gibbs, whose counsel cross examined him and one of his
witnesses, Final certificate, however, was issued May 20, 1890. On
June 12, same year, Gibbs filed formal protest against the entry, al-
leging that the entryman had not maintained residence upon the land
as required by law; that the onlyimprovements on the tract were a small
log cabin worth not to exceed thirty dollars, and a well sunk for the
purpose of watering stock.

A hearing was oxdered by your letter of July 5, 1890; which, after
due notice, was had before the local officers on August 20, 1890—both
parties appearing in person and submitting testimony.

As the result of the trial, the local officers found—

That he did not reside there (i. e., on his homestead entry) continuously, to the
exclusion of a home elsewhere, but while maintaining such a residence on this land
as he thought wonld enable him to acquire title thereto under the homestead law,
his real home, and what his neighbors understood to be his abiding place, was at
his larger house on his adjoining land, where Lhe kept his farming implements, his
domestic animals, lodged and boarded his help, and where he stayed a great portion
of the time himself.

They therefore recommended the cancellation of his entry. He ap-
pealed to your office, and you atfirmed the judgment of the local offi-
cers. He now appeals to the Department,

The appellant contends that your action revoking the order for a
hearing on the charges preferred by Special Agent Bruce and direct-
ing that the entry remain intact—

Constitutes an adjudication, and is a bar to any subsequent contest covering the
same charges, notwithstanding the finding may be based upon evidence taken by a
special agent instead of the local officers . . . . . Upon this point of res judicala
we invite a careful examination of the following decisions, to wit: Parker v. Gamble

(3 L. D., 390); Reeves v. Emblen (8 L. D., 444); Mead ». Cushman (10 L. D., 253);
Busch v. Devine (12 L. D., 317); MecAllister v. Arnold (12 L. D., 520). In the last
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case above cited, the proceedings which were held to be a bar to the contest wene
based upon a special agent’s report. We therefore ask that the contest be dismissed
upon this ground above.

In the first four cases cited by the appellant, there had been o hearing;
they were therefore widely different from the case at bar. In the last
case, to which appellant directs special attention, it is true that ¢ the
proceedings which were held to be a bar to the contest were based upon
a special agent’s report ”—but those ‘ proceedings ” consisted of a hear-
ing “commencing September4, 1883, and continuing nearly two months,
during which time thirty six witnesses were examined, and testimony
taken, covering about one thousand manuseript pages.” None of the
cases cited afford any support for the contention that any action taken
by your office on a special agent’s report, where no hearing has been
had, is a bar to a contest thereafter on the same or any other allegation.

Appellant contends that the contest was initiated from a revengeful
motive because the entryman refused to let the contestant have water
from hisland. While this fact, if shown, might cause contestant’s testi-
mony to be scrutinized with nunusual care, yet if failure to comply with
the requirements of the law is clearly shown, * the contestant’s motive
in attacking the entry . . . . is notmaterial to the entryman’sde-
fense.” Wazuzer v. Kropitzky, syllabus, 5 L. D., 296.)

Counsel also contends that ¢ the only issue is that of residence;”
that “it is expressly found as a faet by the local officers, that Kenny
established his actual, bona fide residence on this land in November,
1384;” and that “the burden is upon the contestant to show an aban-
doument of that residence—to show when and how this Iog house on
the homestead ceased to be Kenny’s legal home.” If the appellant in-
gists upon abiding by the express finding of the local officers, their
finding as to the kind of residence established by the defendant is that
it was “such residence . . . . . . as he thought would enable him to
acquire title thereto.” But—
residence ean not be acquired or maintained by going upon or visiting a claim solely
for the purpose of complying with the letter of the law, with a view of thereby ac-
quiring title to the land; but the act of going upon and the occupancy of the land
must concur with the intent to make it a permanent home to the exclusion of one
elsewhere, (Dayton v. Dayton, on review, 8 L. D., 218; Mary Campbell, on review,
ib., 351.)

I have carefully examined the testimony taken at the hearing; Icon-
cur in the finding of facts and the conclusions of law contained in the
opinions of the local officers and of yourself; and your decision is

therefore affirmed.
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RELINQUISHMENT-REINSTATEMENT.
SHORT ». FLETCHER.

A relinquishment procured from the entryman while ke is so intoxicated as to be in-
capacitated for the transaction of business is not his voluntary aect; and an entry
canceled thereunder must be reinstated.

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 9, 1893.

On May 9, 1889, Aaron Short made homestead entry (No. 857) of the
SE. %, Sec. 2, T., 17 N, R. 7 W, at Kingfisher, Oklahoma Territory.

On June 23, 1889, he relinquished his entry, and the same was can-
celed by the local officers. '

On the same day George W. Fletcher made homestead entry (No-
2583) of said land. '

On July 9, 1889, said Short filed in the local office an affidavit of
contest against Fletcher’s entry, alleging—

That the said George W. Fletcher matde his entry in fraud. That he procured by
fraud, (or) caused to be procured, affiant’s relinguishment to his H. ¥. No. 857, made
by affiant upon said tract. That said relinguishment was procured by fraud and
misrepresentation, and while affiant was under the influence of intoxicating liquors
to such an extent as to incapaecitate him from transacting business. That affiant has
valuable improvements upon said traet, and is an aectual settler residing thereon.
That the entry of said Fletcher is frandulent, and made for speculative purposes;
and this affiant has no knowledge or recollection of executing a relinquishment of
his entry.

The affiant further asked that «his H. E, No. 857 for said tract be
reinstated and the H. E. No. 2583 of said defendant be cancelled.”

A hearing was ordered for November 13,1889, when the parties
appeared and submitted testimony. On January 22, 1890 the local
officers found that ¢ every material allegation of plaintiff’s complaint
has been sustained by a prepondervance of testimony; and the decision
of this office is that the entry of George W. Fletcher for said tract of
land be cancelled and that the euntry of plaintiff Aaron Short for said
land be reinstated.” b

On appeal you affirmed their decision by letter of January 26, 1892,
holding ¢ that at the time Short executed and filed his relinquishment
be was not in a condition to know what he was doing.”

An appeal now brings the case to this Department.

It is contended that said decision is contrary to law, and to the testi- -
mony in the case. The testimony establishes the fact that there was a
preconcerted plan between certain parties who wished to locate a town-
site on Short’s land, to get him drunk, and while drank, to secure a
relinquishment from him, and then get a soldier to enter the land who
could make final proof in a year’s time, and who was then to convey
forty or eighty acres of said land for said townsite. This scheme was
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carried out so far that Short was made drunk, and while drunk his
relinquishment was obtained aund filed in the local office, and Fletcher,
who had been previously selected as the soldier to enter the land, did
enter it on the same day the relinquishment was filed. Short’s intoxi-
cation was so complete as to incapacitate him from doing business. It
has been held by this Department that a relinquishment obtained from
one who was drunk at the time could not be considered as a voluntary
act, but as obtained fraudulently, and that an entry canceled onaccount
of such relinquishment should be reinstated. Duncan v. Campbell (2
L. D,, 325); O’Connor v. Stewart (15 L. D., 535).

In Pitt ». Smith (3 Camp. Cas., 33) Lord Ellenborough held that
“there was no agreement if the defendant was intoxicated in the man-
ner supposed. He had not an agreeing mind. Intoxication is good
evidence upon a plea of non est factum to a deed, of non concessit to a
grant, and of non assumpsit to a promise.,” This decision has been fol-
lowed by both English and American text writers and Courts. (See
the authorities collected in American and English Encyclopedia of Law,
Vol. 11, p. 774.) 'This principle is especially applicable where the action
of the intoxicated person is greatly to his disadvantage, and his intoxi-
cation has been procured for the purpose of taking advantage of him.

Your judgment is affirmed.

DorMAN ». McCouBs.

Motion for the review of departmental decision of June 28, 1892, 14
L. D., 700, denied by Secretary Noble, January 9, 1893.

PRACTICE—-NOTICE—SERVICE BY PUBLICATION.
JARDEE ». CANNON.

Publication of notice is not authorized on an affidavit that fails to show what effort
has been made to secure personal service; and such defect can not be cured by
additional affidavits filed after the issuance of notice.

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 9, 1893,

On August 23, 1884, George W. Cannon made timber-culture entry
(No. 2437) of the SE.  of Sec. 32, T. 31, R. 18 W, at Valentine, Nebraska.

On December 18,1889, John Jardee filed an affidavit of contest, alleg-
ing that—

Prior to the year 1888, there had been ten acres broken and cultivated; and during
the year 1888 the whole ten acres were planted to cuttings and seeds, but were not
cultivated; in the year 18389 the said land was not eultivated, and at the present

time there is not to exceed one acre of tre: ground on said land, and said defects
have not been cured at the present time.
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The foregoing affidavit was sworn to on December 13, 1889, before
J. W. Davenport, a notary public, of Rock county, Nebraska.

At the same date he made the following affidavit before the same
notary public:

State of Nebraska % ss.
Rock County

Personally appeared before me John Jardee of Rock county, State of Nebraska,
who, upon oath, says that after due inquiry he cannot find the present residence of
G‘reorge W. Cannon, and when last heard from he was in Sioux City, Iowa.

(SBigned) JOHN JARDEE.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 13th day of December A. D., 1889.

(Signed) J. H. DAVLNPORT
Notary Public.

Upon this affidavit solely, so far as appears, the local officers, on
January 30, 1890, gave a notice by publication, summoning the parties
to appear at the local office on March 22, 1890, and before said Daven-
port at his office in Newport, Nebraska, on March 18, 1890, to offer tes-
timony eoncerning said alleged failure.

The contestant appeared before said notary, but the claimant failed
to appear. The contestant and two other witnesses testified in his be-
half to the alleged failure.

On June 10, 1890, and before the local officers had rendered their
decision, the clannant filed a motion to dismiss the contest—
for the reason that he never received notice of the initiation of the same, though his
place of residence was well known to contestant, and could have been known by
enquiry of persons living in the vieinity of the land in controversy, and particu-
larly of D. B. Bennett, who was employed by claimant to do the work upon his
claim, and with whom claimant corresponded from time to time.

On August 9, 1890, the local officers made their judgment in which
they held that the contestant had sustained his allegations, and recom-
mended the eancellation of said entry, and overruled said motion.

On appeal you sustained their decision on the merits, by your letter
of February 29, 1892, but failed to pass definitely upon the question of
Jurisdiction raised by said motion.

An appeal now brings the case before me.

The specifications assign ten separate grounds of error in your
decision, of which it is only necessary to consider the seventh. It is
as follows:

Error in not setting aside service by publication for want of evidence of due
diligence to obtain personal service.

Rule 11, Rules of Praetice, provides that—

Notice may be given by publication alone when it is shown by affidavit of the
contestant, and by such other evidence as the register and receiver may require,
that dne diligence has been used and that personal service cannot be made. The
party will be required to state what effort has been made to get personal service,

The affiant in the present case does not state ¢ what effort has
been made to get personal service,” except that ¢ after due enquiry he
cannot find the present residence of Greorge W. Cannon, and when
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last heard from he was in Sioux City, lowa.” He is not the proper
Jjudge of what is “due enquiry.” He should state the facts relating to
his enquiry, that the proper officers may determine whether he has
used due diligence or not. It does not appear in said affidavit that he
enquired in the vicinity of the land, or where, or when, or to what
extent his enquiries were made.

In Musser ». Parker (13 L. D., 240) an affidavit like the one in this
case was held insufficient. In that ecase it is said—¢ It is apparent,
following the practice, that the affidavit, unsupported by other evi-
dence, is insufficient, and whatever other evidence the local officers
may have had, there is none before me.”

In the present case it does not even appear that the contestant was
present in person before the local officers before the notice was issued,
or that any ¢ other evidence” than said atfidavit was received by them.

. Affidavits were filed by the contestant after the notice was issued
for the purpose of curing the defect in the first atfidavit, but such
showing was too late. Burgess ». Pope's Heirs (9 L. D., 218).

In the present case the timber-culture application and the receipt of
the claimant both state that his residence is * Bassett, Nebraska.”

The jurisdiction of the local officers depended upon the service of
notice according to ¢ the rules established,” as provided by the third
section of the timber-culture act of June 14, 1878 (20 Stat., 113).

The claimant has not had his day in court, and is not legally bound
by the proceedings had in the case, and they are therefore set aside.
Either a new notice for a re-hearing must be issued within thirty days
after service of notice of this decision upon the contestant, or the con-
test must be dismissed, as the contestant may elect. Michael Howard
(15 L. 1. 506).

Your judgment is modified accordingly.

o ﬂi; | —
y,l} CONFIRMATION—CHANGE OF VENUE—LOCAL OFFICER,

EMBLEN v. WEED.

£

‘The sale of an undivided interest in the land covered by an entry prior to March 1,
1888, does not bring said entry within the confirmatory provisions of section 7,
act of March 3, 1891.

There is no statutory provision nor departmental regulation providing for a change
of venue in proceedings hefore a local office.

The interest of a local officer in the subject mattér involved in a contest does not
preclude nor excuse such officer from taking part in the determination of the
case,

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
9, 1893.

On the 28th of May, 1891, you rendered a decision in this case, near
the conclusion of which you said * no appeal from this decision to the
Honorable Secretary will be allowed.” A motion for review of that de-
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cision being made, you denied the same on the 29th of July, 1891. This
was followed by an application for certiorari,which was granted by the
Department, on the 23d of December, 1891 (13 L. D., 722), The case
is now before me in response to the direction contained in said writ.

In the application therefor, the errors complained of in your decisions
of May 28 and July 29, 1891, were duly enumerated and specified, and
an elaborate argument in support of said application, and to show the
existence of such errors, was filed by the counsel for Emblen. A
lengthy answer thereto was filed by the counsel for Weed. Since the
granting of said writ no additional papers have been filed by either
party,and I have therefore considered the case upon therecord as then
made up.

From this record I learn that George F. Weed made pre-emption
cash entry for the SE. 1 of See, 22, T. 2 N,, R. 48 W, Denver land dis-
trict, Colorado, on the 19th of September, 1885, having made settle-
ment upon said land on the 18th of February of that year, and filed his
declaratory statement therefor on the 26th of that month.

On the 4th of October, 1888, George F. Emblen filed an affidavit of
contest, alleging that said cash entry had been secured by false and
fraudulent representations; that prior to such entry Weed had never
become a bone fide resident upon said land, or resided thereon in good
faith; that he had caused and allowed said land to be built upon as a
townsite, and used the same for the purposes of trade, prior to date of
said entry.

You ordered a hearing before the local officers to determine the truth
of these charges, and at the conclusion of the contestant’s evidence,
the claimant moved that the case be dismissed, on the ground that the
contestant had failed to prove his charges. This motion was granted,
and the contest dismissed. An appeal was taken to your office, and on
the 20th of February, 1890, you reversed the decision of the local offi-
cers, and held said entry for cancellation.

‘Weed then moved for a review or recounsideration of your decision,
and asked if that motion was not granted, that a rehearing before the
local officers be ordered. The mayor and board of trustees of the town
of Yuma, Colorado, which town was built upon said land, also peti-
tioned that a hearing of the case before the local officers be granted,
and that said petitioners be allowed to intervene and be made parties
defendant.

A. F. Meyer, and several other residents of the town of Yuma, also
applied to be made parties defendant, and prayed that a rehearing be
granted, and that they be allowed to defend for themselves and for the
benefit of all other residents of said town in interest. They alleged that
they were residents of Yuma, Colorado; that the prineipal portion of
said town, and nearly all the valuable improvements thereof were situ-
ated upon the land in controversy, and that said applicants were own-
ers of valuable improvements upon said land; that the value of the per-
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manent improvements of said town is about three hundred thousand
dollars, and about six hundred people resided in said town. They also
alleged that Weed had fully complied with the law in good faith, and
that long prior to the initiation of contest by Emblen, they had pur-
chased from Weed the land upon which their improvements had been
made.

After considering these several motions, petitions, and applications,
you decided on the 18th of June, 1890, that the petition of the mayor
and board of trustees of the town of Yuma, and the application of Meyer
and others, did not show sufficient cause for rehearing, but that as the
entryman had offered no testimony when he made his motion to dismiss
the contest, that his entry ought not to be canceled without first allow-
ing him an opportunity to rebut the proof offered by the contestant.
You, therefore, modified your decision of February 20, 1890, and re-
manded the case to the local office for further hearing, directing that
testimony be first offered in behalf of the defence, and after that the
contestant be allowed to introduee evidence in rebuttal. You also
ordered that said mayor and board of trustees, together with Meyer,
and any other parties who might file a statement in the local office show-
ing their interest under said entry, shall be allowed to intervene and
defend at such further hearing. Thelocal officers were directed to give
due notice to all parties in interest of the time set for such hearing.

On the 23d of June, 1890, the local officers at Denver notified all par-
ties of the order for rehearing, but before such hearing took place, the
Akron land district was formed and the land involved coming within
the boundaries of that distret, all papers and letters in the matter were
transferred to the land office therein. This was prior to the 1stof Au-
gust, 1890, and on that date the local officers at Akron issued notice
for said Emblen and Weed to appear at their office on the 16th of Sep-
tember, 1890, and submit testimony, as allowed by your letter of June
18, 1890.

Upon the application of Weed, made prior to the 16th of September,
the testimony of several of his witnesses wastakenby commissioners duly
appointed for that purpose. On the 16th of September, the day fixed
for the hearing before the Akron local officers, neither Emblen nor his
attorney appeared, but the attorney had mailed at Denver, the day
previous, a letter addressed to said local officers, containing an appli-
cation for a continuance for forty days, to enable Emblen to secure the
deposition of a witness, and also an affidavit embodying a protest
against a further hearing in said case by the local officers of the Akron
office. Im this paper it was alleged that Weed, by his motion to dis-
miss the contest at the close of contestant’s testimony at the first hear-
ing, forfeited his right to submit further testimony; that your letter
ordering the rehearing directed it to take place at the Denver ofﬁce’;
that Mr. Reed, the receiver at the Akron office, was interested in the
result of said contest, being the owner of a. portion of said land by title
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derived from Weed, and was prejudiced against the contestant and
biased in favor of the claimant, and he therefore prayed for a change of
venue and that the further hearing be had before. some disinterested
officer to be designated by your office.

The local officers denied the application for a change of venue, took
the testimony of Weed and his witnesses, and allowed Emblen ten days
within which to file interrogatories relative to the deposition of his ab-
sent witness. Upon being advised by the local officers of their action,
Emblen sought to appeal therefrom, but the local officers refused to
allow an appeal, claiming that their action was interlocutory and not
appealable,

On the 4th of November, 1890, the local officers rendered their joint
decision in the case, in which they said: ¢ We find the preponderance
of testimony in favor of claimant’s good faith in acquiring title to this
land, and dismiss the contest.”

An appeal from that decision was taken to your office, and on the 28th
of May, 1891, you approved and affirmed the decision of the local offi-
cers, and held that inasmuch as Emblen had relinquished all preference
right to make entry for the land, and had declined to pay the costs of
the contest, except so far as the testimony on his part was concerned,
that he was a protestant and not a contestant, and was therefore not
entitled to the right of appeal from your decision to the Department.

In answer to a motion made by Emblen for areview of that decision,
the counsel for Weed moved that his entry be confirmed under section
seven of the act of March 3, 1891 (26 Stat., 1095), it appearing that after
final entry and prior to March 1, 1888, Weed had sold and conveyed a
large portion of said land to bona fide purchasers, for valuable consider-
ations.

In your decision of Emblen’s motion for review, dated July 29, 1891,
you denied said motion and after referring to the evidence in the case
in reference to conveyances by Weed, you said:

It appears from the foregoing evidence of conveyances that prior to the first of
March, 1888, Weed had conveyed for valuable consideration, by warranty deed, his
entire interest in one quarter of the land in dispute, viz: Forty acres,and by an-
other warranty deed one-half of an undivided interest in all the remainder of the
land herein, viz., in one hundred and twenty acres, and that as late as May 26, 1891,
there was norecorded reconveyance to Weed of any of thelands so formerly transferred
by him. It is therefore to be held, by reason of these sales, the evidence being satis-
factory, that the title to the land is complete and confirmed by section 7, of the act of
Congress hereinbefore mentioned, and will pass to patent, and this independent of

the fact that the entry is sustained on its merits, and entitled to patent on that
ground.

In deciding Emblen’s application for certiorari, the only question
before the Department was as to whether he was or was not entitled to
the right of appeal from your decision of April 28, 1891, wherein you
had held that he was a protestant and not a contestant, because he had
relinquished his preference right to make entry for the land, and had
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declined to pay the costs of thecontest, exceptunder rule 55 of the rules
of practice. In deciding that question the Department said:

Prior to the passage of the act of May 14, 1880, the preference right of entry was
anknown, but it was nof then claimed that a contestant was not a party in interest,
and that he had no right of appeal. A distinction was recognized between a con-
testant and a protestant before that act became a law. A person who charged a de-
fault against an entryman, and produeed evidence in support of such charge, and
paid the costs of taking testimony upon his own direct and cross-examinatiou, as re-
quired by rule 55, was a contestant, and entitled to the right of appeal, while aper-
son who simply eharged a default and furnished the information npon which it was
based, but paid no part of the costs of the proeceedings which resulted from such
charge, was a protestant, withont interest in the case, and without the right of
appeal. .

Under the circumstances of this case, it was held that your decision
denied Emblen a right to which he was entitled.

‘With the entire record now before me, other questions are presented
for consideration. That the entry of Weed was confirmed by section
seven of the act of March 3, 1891, is earnestly denied by the counsel for
Emblen. In his position upon this question, he is sustained by the
Department, it having been held in Bradbury ». Dickinson (14 L. D,,
1), that the sale of an undivided interest in the lands covered by an
entry, prior to March 1, 1888, does not bring said entry within the eon-
firmatory provisions of section 7, of said act. The case must therefore
be considered and decided upon its merits.

Upon the evidence submitted at thetwo hearings, I have no hesitancy
in finding that Weed made his settlement and filing in good faith, and
that he complied with the law as to residence and improvements. Iam
also satisfied that he did not cause and allow said land to be built upon
as a town site, and use the same for the purposes of trade, prior to his
entry, as charged by Emblen.

Upon this point the evidence is, that prior to Weed’s filing the Bur-
lington Railroad crossed a corner of said tract, and the company had a
watering tank thereon. It afterwards built a passenger and freight
depot upon the land comprising its right of way, which,in accordance
with the act of March 3, 1875 (18 Stat., 482) was a strip one hundred feet
in width each side of the central line of said road. Upon this land the
eompany allowed cerftain persons to erect buildings, within which they
carried on business of different kinds. An attempt was made toshow
that portions of some of these buildings extended upon the land of
Weed, but the evidence did not establish that fact, while it was clearly
shown that he refused to allow the erection of any buildings upon his
land prior to his cash entry. He testified that he took the land for
farming purposes only expecting that the town would be built upon
land some four or five miles distant. After he made his entry, and ob-
tained his final certificate, there was such a demand for lots that he
gold a portion of the tract to the Lincoln Land Company, and the town
of Yuma was afterwards located thereon. His sale to the land com-
pany was in Jannary, 1886.
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This disposes of the case upon its merits, leaving for consideration
only the question raised by Emblen, that the receiver at the Akron
land office being a lot owner in the town of Yuma, had a property in-
terest involved in said proceedings, acquired through the defendant,
and was therefore disqualified to act in the case.

This question was raised upon the trial, was insisted upon before you,
and is made the principal ground upon which a reversal ot your decis-
ion is asked, in the appeal to the Department.

That a judge having a pecuniary interestin a case on trial,isthereby
incapacitated for sitting in the cause, is well established both by stat-
ute and decisions. With local land officers, however, the case is some-
what different. The law and the rules and regulations of the Depart-
ment require each of them to take part in the consideration of all cases
in which the land in dispute is situated in the distriet for which they are
officers. There are no provisions for a change of venue, or for the call-
ing in of any other officer to sit in a particular case. Both must take
part in considering the evidence, and upon the termination of a contest,
Rule 51 of the Rules of Practice requires them to render a report and
opinion in the case.

In the case at bar, therefore, Emblen demanded what could not be
granted under the law and the regulations of the Department. The
receiver at Akron was required to take part in determining the case.
Nothing but ceasing to be such officer would relieve him from such
duty under our present rules. The question raised, therefore, can be
decided in only one way, and that is against the correctness of the
position of Emblen,

It does not appear that Emblen was in any way damaged by the re-
ceiver taking part in the decision of the case. It is not claimed that
evidence offered by him was improperly rejected, or that evidence ob-
jected to by him was improperly received. In fact, local officers are
not permitted to thus pass upon the competency or incompetency of
evidence. They must receive all that is submitted, and transmit it to
your oftice for consideration. It is there examined, whether the decis-
ion of the local officers is appealed from or not. In this case there was
an appeal, and able arguments were filed. After examining the whole
record, you decided that Emblen had failed to establish the charges
made by him against Weed and his enfry, and dismissed his contest.
I have now carefully examined the whole record, and find that upon
the testimony submitted, no local officers could havereasonably reached
a different conclusion than that announced by those who heard this
case. 1 am therefore clearly of the opinion that their recommendation
that Emblen’s contest be dismissed, was correct. Ixcept as to the
particulars mentioned in the Departmental decision of December 23,
1891, granting the writ of certiorari in the case, and as to the ques-
tions herein stated, your decisions of May 28, and July 29, 1891, are
affirmed.

12771—voL. 16——3
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CONTESTANT—-ACT OF MAY 14, 1880, AMENDED.
CIRCULAR.

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
GENERAL LAND OFFICE,
Washington, D. C., January 9, 1893.
REGISTERS AND RECEIVERS, :
United States District Land Offices:

GENTLEMEN: I have to call your attention to the act of Congress
approved July 26,1892 (pamphlet statutes, page 270, entitled *“An act
to amend section two of an act approved May 14, 1880, being ‘An act
for the relief of settlers on public lands,”” a copy of which is hereto
annexed.

This act of July 26, 1892, amends section two of the act of May 14,
1880 (21 Stat., 140), by adding thereto a second proviso which reads as
follows, viz:

Provided further, That should any such person who has initiated a contest die be-
fore the final termination of the same, said contest shall not abate by reason thereof,
but his heirs who are citizens of the United States, may continue the prosecution
under such rules and regulations as the Secretary of the Interior may prescribe, and
said heirs shall be entitled {o the same rights under this act that contestant would
have been if his death had not oceurred.

In other respects, the said section two remains unchanged. The act
of July 26, 1892, does not affect in any manner the fee of $1.00 re-
quired to be paid to the register by pre-existing law,nor the require-
ment of the act of August 4, 1886 (24 Stat., 439), that such fee shall be
deposited and accounted for, as other fees. See eircular of November
12, 1891.

The second proviso added to said section two by the act of July 26,
1892, changed the rule which previously prevailed in cases of contests
involving any pre-emption, homestead, or timber culture entry, for the
abatement of the contest in case of the death of the contestant before
the final termination thereof, It provides that the heirs of the de-
ceased contestant, who are citizens of the United States may continue
the prosecution of the contest under such rules and regulations as the
Secretary of the Interior may prescribe, and that said heirs shall be
entitled to the same rights thereunder that contestant would have
been if his death had not oceurred.

In any such cases, therefore, on the death of the contestant being
suggested on the record, you will recognize the rights of the contest-
ant’s heirs who are citizens of the United States, if any there be, to
prosecute the case under the rules and regulations heretofore provided
for the prosecution of contests, and contained in the rules of practice
and Departmental decisions, with which you are presumed to be ac-
quainted, and in all subsequent proceedings, treat them as parties,
Should they succeed in the contest, they will be required to pay the
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$1.00 fee prescribed for the register, and on their doing so, will be en-
titled to notice and the right of entry, as the contestant Would have
been, if his death had not oceurred.

As indicating the views of the Department,in reference to the rights
of heirs entitled to make entry under the general laws, you are referred
to Departmental decisions in Tauer ». The heirs of Walter A. Mann, 4 -
L. D., 433; Sharrar ». Teachman e¢ al., 5 L. D,, 422, and Tobias Beck-
ner, 6 L. D., 134.

The new rule provided by the act of July 26, 1892, as above, will be
applicable to all cases in which the death of the contestant occurred,
or may oceur, after that date, and before the final termination of the
contest.

Very respectfully,
M. M. ROSE,
Acting Commissioner.
Approved,
JorNy W. NOBLE,
Secretary,

JANUARY 9, 1893.

AN ACT to amend Section two of an act approved May fourteenth, eighteen hundred and eighty,
being ‘* An act for the relief of settlers on public lands.”

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Represeniatives of the United States of Amer-
ica in Congress assembled, That section two of an act approved May fourteenth, eight-
een hundred and eighty, entitled ‘‘An ae$ for the relief of settlers on public lands,”
be, and the same is hereby, amended so as to read as follows:

Src. 2. In all cases where any person has contested, paid the land-office fees, and
procured the cancellation of any pre-emption, homestead, or timber-culture entry,
he shall be notified by the register of the land office of the distriet in which such
land is situated of such cancellation, and shall be allowed thirty days from date of
such notice to enter said lands: Provided, That said register shall be entitled to a
fee of one dollar for the giving of such notice, to be paid by the contestant and not
to be reported: Provided further, That should any such person who has initiated a
contest die before the final termination of the same, said contest shall not abate by
reason thereof, but his heirs who are citizens of the United States, may continue the
prosecution under such rules and regulations as the Secretary of the Interior may
prescribe, and said heirs shall be entitled to the same rights under this act that con-
testant would have been if his death had not occurred.

Approved July 26, 1892,

SUSPENDED ENTRY—-DESERT LAND CONTEST.
VRADENBURG v. ORR.

During the pendency of a departmental order suspending a desert land entry the
local, and General Land Offices are withount jurisdiction to hear and determine
a contest against said entry; and, an application to contest an entry so sus-
pended should not be allowed, but held subject to the result of the proceedings
instituted by the government,
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First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 9, 1893.

The land involved in this appeal is Sec. 10, T. 25 8., R. 25 E., M. D.
M., Visalia, California, 1and district.

The record shows that Thomas B. Orr made desert land entry on
said tract May 17, 1877. On September 12, 1877, my predecessor Sec-
retary Schurz, directed you to suspend all entries made in the Visalia
land district, under the act of March 3, 1877, and to cause an investi-
gation to be made before the local officers as to the character of each
of the tracts entered. This suspension was not revoked until January
12,1891, (See United States ». Haggin, 12 L. D., 34.)

On April 13, 1836, Luther C. Vradenburg filed an uncorroborated
affidavit of contest that— _

Thomas B. Orr has not conducted any water thereon or made any effort to do so.
That said tract of land is good, agricultural land and will produce an agricultural
crop without irrigation annually except in years of extreme drouth. That natural
grasses grew in abundance thereon without irrigation and at the present time,
the grass on said land is over one foot high and affiant further states upon his in_
formation and belief that good crops of wheat can De raised on said land without
irrigation,

Notice of this contest was served on Orr personally and the hearing
was had before the local officers. On the day set for hearing Emile
Chauvin, appellee in this case, made a motion to be allowed to appear
and defend, setting up that Orr transferred all his right in said land
under his said entry to him and one Juan L. Noriega for a valuable
consideration on June 5, 1877, and that said Noriega on June 11, 1884,
sold and transferred to this appellee all his right, in said land acquired
under the former transfer, This motion was granted over the objection
of contestant. The testimony was taken before the local officers, who
decided that it did not show the land to be non-desert in character.
Contestant appealed, and you by letter of April 29, 1891, affirmed their
decision as to the character of the land, but held—

In view of the fact that it appears from the testimony of the defense that defend-
ant has failed to comply with the law (by conducting water on the land and thus
reclaiming it) from date of his entry to the initiation of this contest, your decision
dismissing said contest for this reason is hereby reversed and said entry held for
cancellation.

The transferee filed a motion for review and reconsideration of your
said decision, and on consideration thereof, you by letter of July 30, 1891,
sustained the motion, reversed your former judgment, and held that,—
the order of suspension of said entries had the effect of holding all proceedings in
statw quo from the date such order was promulgated until the same was revoked,
and ordered that the defendant be allowed three years from service on
him of your decision, exclusive of the time which elapsed between May
17, (the date of the entry) and September 28, (the date of the order of
suspension) in which to reclaim the land and offer final proof. From
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both of said judgments the contestant prosecutes this appeal alleging
that you erred in said decisions (1) in holding that defendant was ex-
cused from the reclamation during the period that the entries were
under suspension; (2)in not holding that the transfer by Orr to Chan-
vin was void; (3) in not holding that said transfer was void for the
reason that Chauvin made desert entry on other lands and held still
others as transferee; (4) in holding said land fo be desert in character,
and (5) in not ordering the cancellation of said entry and giving prefer-
ence right of entry to contestant.

In the meantime there had been presented to the local officers the
following applications to eunter and contest, which I copy from your
letter of April 29, 1891.

On July 22, 1887, Samuel DeBow, Thomas E. Taggart and W. J. Carlisle filed con-
test affidavits against said entry, in which they each substantially allege that Orr
has not reclaimed the said land nor any part of it; that his said entry was fraudu-
lently made and that the land mentioned therein is not desert. Subsequently, on
August 26, 1887, you rejected said affidavits to contest ‘‘ on the ground that said
entry was suspended in 1877.” Each of said parties filed, on September 19, 1887, an
appeal from your action rejecting his application to contest. December 5, 1887, each
of the last mentioned parties applied to make homestead entries for certain portions
of said tract; DeBow sought to enter the NW, }, Taggart the N}, 1 and Carlisle the
SE. . )

Accompanying said application to enter was the affidavit of each setting forth that
said land is not desert within the meaning of the law. On the day following, (De-
cember 6, 1887) you rejected said applications on the ground that the land sought to
be entered was covered by said desert land enfry and on the same day each of said
parties appealed to this office from your said action rejecting their applications and
asked that a hearing be ordered. April 24, 1888, said parties again applied to make
homestead entry in the same manner for land they sought to enter December 5, 1887,
and you again rejected their applications from which action they appealed and asked
that a hearing be ordered, etc.

April 4, 1888, Jacob 8. Middleton filed his contest affidavit against said entry,
charging that the tract isnot desert within the meaning of the law. Accompanying
his said affidavit is his application to make timber culture entry for NE. of said
section. On the next day (April 15, 1888) you rejected said application to enter for
the reason that the tract was covered by said desert land entry and you refused to
isgue citations on said affidavit of contest because the desert land entry was sus-
ypended. April 5, 1888, Middletou appealed therefrom to this office.

April 9, 1888, Louis LaCour and Engene F. LaCour each filed affidavits of contests
against said desert land entry, alleging substantially the same grounds as stated by
Middleton.

Accompanying their affidavits were applications to make homestead entry respec-
tively for SW. } and SE.}. Said applications to contest and enter were on the same
day rejected by you for the reasons heretofore mentioned, whereupon an appeal was
taken to this office,

Harry Jackins likewise made application to contest said desert land entry and
also to make homestead entry for the NW. %.

May 29, 1888, Jeseph B. Gyle also made application to contest said desert land en-
try and to make homestead entry for the SW. 4.

It appears that the same rulings and proceedings were had upon Jackins’ and
Gyle’s applications as were had npon the several applications heretofere mentioned.
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In addition to these I find in the record the homestead application
of Teresa Panero for the SW. £ of said section, presented May 19, 1891,
and rejected for the same reason given above. On June 18, following,
she filed an affidavit and “petition” in which she alleges that she has
- continuously resided on said land since September 28, 1886; that she
has a dwelling-house twelve by twenty-four; has five acres fenced and
planted in fruit trees, vines, etc., together with some other improve-
ments, all of the value of a little over $800; and she asks that her ap-
plication may be received and filed under the rule announced in John
H. Reed (6 L. D., 563), and Henry Gauger (10 L. D,, 221). The local
officers refused to consider this ¢ petition” ¢for the reason that the
homestead application of Panero was rejected and due notice has been
given of her right of appeal.” On October 19, 1891, she appealed.

I also find that John L. Wasson made homestead application May 13,
1891, for the E. & of SE. £ of said section, which was rejected for the
same reasons, and he took exactly the same course at the same time as
did Panero. He swears that he has a good dwelling-house, barn, well
and two or three acres in cultivation; that his improvements are worth
$500; that he has resided upon the land for three and a half years with
his family.

Under the doctrine announced in the recent case of Adams v. Far-
riugton (15 L. D., 234), an action arising in the same local office and
almost identical with the one at bar in all respects, I think, the register
and receiver and yourself were without jurisdiction to hear and deter-
mine this case, while this entry was under suspension by the govern-
ment. The contest should nothave been allowed, but should have been
held subject to the result of the proceedings instituted by the govern-
ment. (See Adams v, Farrington, suprae, and authorities cited there.)

The hearing of the contest being unwarranted, the case should be
remanded to the local office for hearing de novo., With that end in
view, I return to you the entire record with directions to instruet the
register and receiver to order a hearing and notify the parties to the
contest of the time and place thereof, and give the fullest latitude to
them in their endeavor to establish the charges made against this en-
try, and the character of the land at the date of the entry,

In view of the determination I have announced, it is unnecessary, at
this time, to decide the rights of the several applicants to enter por-
tions of the land in eontroversy, any further than to say that the appli-
cations of Panero and Wasson should have been received and placed
on file, subject to the result of this contest.

Your judgment is thus modified.
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MOTION FOR REVIEW—APPEAL--NOTICE.

GREGG ¢. LAKEY,.

Failure to serve the opposite party with notice of a motion to dismiss an appeal, does
not deprive the Department of its authority to dismiss said appeal for want of
jurisdiction.

A motion for review on the ground of newly discovered evidence can not be granted,
where such evidence is first discovered and offered by another as the basis of a
contest.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
10, 1893.

This is a motion to review departmental decision of May 11, 1892,
(unreported) which dismissed the appeal of Amy Gregg from your
decision of March 26, 1891, rejecting her amended application to con-
test the soldiers’ additional homestead entries of Harlem Cole and
Simon Lakey, made at Helena, Montana.

Said amended application was filed February 27, 1891, and was re-
Jected by you because it joined in one application a contest against two
distinet additional entries, made by different parties and for different
Jand.

On June 8, 1891, the contestant appealed from your decision, and
filed therewith a dismissal of said contest against the entry of Cole.

S. B. Pinney, of Fargo, North Dakota, appears of record as the attor-
ney for said Cole and Lakey.

By letter dated November 10, 1891, he forwarded a motion to dismiss
said appeal, because it showed no evidence of service of notice upon
the opposite party.

By departmental decision of May 11, 1892, it was held that—

There is no evidence of service of said appeal upon defendant or his counsel, as
required by the rules of practice, and it is therefore dismissed.

Notice of the appeal was not served on the opposite party as required
by Rules 86 and 93, Rules of Practice.

The motion for review is based upon two prineipal grounds.

The first is as follows:

Because the motion of S. B. Pinney to dismiss Gregg’s appeal of
June 4, 1891, was not served upon Gregg, nor any one representing
her. ‘

There is no evidence that said motion to dismiss was served upon the
opposite party. But this fact does not confer jurisdiction upon the
Department to entertain an appeal which has not been served as re-
quired by the rules. The Department will dismiss such an appeal upon
its own motion. Huntoon ». Devereux (10 L. D., 408); Bundy ». Fre-
mont Townsite (Ibid, 593); Charles A. Parker (11 L. D., 375).

The failure to serve the motion to dismiss does not cure the defective
appeal, or deprive the Department of its authority to dismiss the appeal
for want of jurisdiction. The appeal was properly dismissed.
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Said motion for review is mainly based upon the fact that there is
newly discovered evidence filed in the case by said Gregg, which was
not before the Department when its former deecision was made, which
shows that Simon Lakey, in whose name said additional entry was
made, never had any interest in the same; that his certificate of addi-
tional right was procured by frandulently personating his uncle, as the
soldier entitled thereto; that he mnever was a party to the case; and
that said Pinney had no right to represent him or to demand notice of
said appeal.

These are serious charges which call for investigation, but there is
record evidence that substantially the same charges were made by Ezra
M. Robords in his application to contest said entry forwarded by the
local officers on September 1, 1891, whose application antedates the mo-
tion for review and who first called the attention of the Department to
this evidence. This is therefore more properly evidence newly discov-
ered by Robords than by Gregg. This evidence filed after the depart-
mental deecision does not make that decision erroneous, especially as it
was based upon want of jurisdiction, and not upon the merits of the
case.

The motion must be denied.

——
i

DESERT LAND ENTRY-~-RECLAIMED TRACT.
CAMPBELL v. SUTTER.

" A claimant nnder the desert land aet will not be permitted to inelude within his
entry a traet known by him to be already reclaimed by another, who is assert-
ing a right thereto.

First Assistant Seoretary Chandler to the Commissioner of General Land
Office, January 11, 1893,

On the 16th of April, 1890, Charles Sutter made desert land entry for
the E. 4 of the NE. 1 of Sec. 22, and the W. { of the NW. £ of Sec. 23,
T. 1 N.,, B. 18 E,, Hailey land district, Idaho.

On the 18th of the same month, Daniel B. Campbell filed an affidavit
of contest against said entry, alleging that a portion of said land had
been reclaimed, and was not desert in character; that water was con-
ducted upon said land in 1889, and a large crop of garden vegetables
and alfalfa raised by such irrigation; that the land was settled upon
and occupied by Henry Harpham, and had been since March, 1889,

A hearing took place in May, 1890, and resulted in a decision by the
local officers, which I quote in full:

The land involved in this contest had for a year or more prior to 'Sutter’s entry
been in the possession of, and claimed by one, Henry Harpham.

In April of this year, 1890, negotiations had been carried on between Harpham
and Sutter, looking to a purchase by Sutter of Harpham’s improvements upon this,
and his right to other lands adjoining.
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Contestant Campbell, however, made the first purchase of Harpham, but Suiter,
hearing of the sale, entered the land in contest. It seems that hoth contestant and
 defendant wished to enter under the desert act this land and the adjoining land,

which had been covered by Harpham’s entries, and that this case grew out of their
desires in that respect. It is alleged that a portion of the land covered by Sutter’s
entry has been reclaimed, and the evidence is eclear, that from three to seven acres
was cleared by Harpham in 1889, and crop raised thereon Dby artificial irrigation.
The question therefore presents itself,—should this fact cause the cancellation of
the whole entry? The cultivated land referred to is on the north-west forty,
that is the NE. } of the NE.1 of Sec. 22. All the balance of the tract is desert
and unreclaimed.

Under all the circumstances of this case, we are disposed to recommend that the
NE. } of the NE. £ of Sec.22, T. L N,, R. 18 E,, be canceled, and that the remainder
of the entry stand intact.

From that decision Campbell appealed, claiming that the local offi-
cers erred in not recommending the cancellation of the entire entry.
On the 8th of February, 1892, you rendered a decision upon this appeal,
in which you set aside the decision of the local officers, so far as it re.
lated to the NE. £ of the NE. } of Sec. 22, and dismissed the contest.
An appeal from your decision brings the case to the Department.

In the case of Rivers v. Burbank, decided by Secretary Teller on the
Tth of February, 1883, (9 C. L. 0., 238), it was held thatlands that have
been reclaimed from a. desert state, and are now producing crops by
means of irrigating ditches, ete., are not subject to entry under the
desert land law, The same rule was followed in Taylor ». Rogers (14
L. D, 194).

From the testimony in this case, it appears that Henry Harpham
constructed a diteh from Wood River to the land in question, the ca-
pacity of which was one thousand inches at the river, and fifty inches
at the land, and its length about a mile and a quarter, He erected
upon the land a house with two rooms, built a corral of poles, and had
eight, or ten acres fenced, and peles and posts upon the land to fence
fifteen or twenty acres more.

On the 18th of April, 1890, he sold for $300 to Daniel B. Campbell,
his said water right, which he described as a water right to nine hun-
dred inches of water under a four-inch pressure of the water of Wood
River, the water to be conveyed to sections 22, 23 and 26, T. 1, N, R,
18 E., by means of a ditch, and to be used for agricultural and domestic
purposes, which water right was located by said Harpham July 3, 1888,
and duly recorded. Also all the improvements on said land, “consist-
ing in part of the house, poles, posts, and fences thereon, and all other
improvements connected with, and belonging to his said homestead
settlement,” A quit elaim deed executed by Harpham, evidences this
sale.

Sutter was fully aware of Harpham’s water right, ditch, and improve-
ments, and had had some negotiations with him in reference to pur-
chasing the same. During their last interview, Harpham informed
him that he had about completed a sale thereof to Campbell. This was
on the 14th of Aypril, and being at that time informed by a son-in-law
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of Harpham that the land upon which the building and fence were sit-
unated had never been entered, he proceeded to the land office and
made entry therefor. He admits that he then knew that Campbell
was about to purchase the improvements upon the land.

The evidence shows that at the time of the hearing there was water
running in the ditech, and that the year previous, vegetables and a
erop of alfalfa had been raised upon a portion of the land, which was
watered by the ditch. An inch of water was said to be sufficient to
properly irrigate an aere of land in that vicinity., The water right
being for nine hundred inches, and the capacity of the ditch at the
land being more than sufficient to afford one inch of water to each acre
in the NE. 1 of the NE. % of section 22, I am disposed to hold, with
the local officers, that that subdivision was sufficiently reclaimed from
a desert state to render it not subject to entry utider the desert land
laws. .

Had Sutter had no knowledge of the situation of the land, and find-
ing it vacant upon the records of the land office, had made entry there-
for, the equities, if not the legal rights of the parties would have been
decidedly different. As it was, he knew that Harpham had expended a
large amount of money in making the ditch to, and the improvements
upon the land, and he knew that Campbell was to pay a good price for
such improvements. By his entry, he sought to deprive Harpham of
any recompense for his labor, and Campbell of any benefit from his
purchase and payment.

Sutter seems to have been satisfied with the decision of the local of-
ficers, as he took no appeal therefrom. That decision canceled his entry,
so far as it related to the NE. £ of the NE. £ of section 22, and allowed
it to remain intact as to the remainder of the Iand. In view of the fact
of his acquiescence in such decision, and of the partial, if not complete,
reclamation of that subdivision of said section, and of all the facts and
cireumstances of this case, I think the conclusion reached by the reg-
ister and receiver was correct. The decision appealed from, so far as
it conflicts therewith, is therefore reversed.

TIMBER CULTURE ENTRY-DEVOID OF TIMBER.
NIicHOLS v, GEDDES.

The departmental ruling in foree at the date of the allowance of a timber culture
entry must determine whether the land embraced therein is ¢“devoid of timber
within the meaning of the statute.” '

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, Jaruary 11, 1893.

On the 16th of May, 1885, George Geddes made timber culture entry
for the NE, 1 of the NW, 1 of Sec. 21, T. 16 8., R. 1 E,, 8. B. M., Los
Angeles land distriet, California.
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On the 9th of May, 1889, R. G. Nicholas filed an affidavit of contest,
alleging that the land was not subject to entry under the timber cul-
ture law, not being naturally devoid of timber, and that the entryman
had not complied with the plovmons of the law under which his entry
was made.

The lvcal officers rendered a de ision in the case on the 20th of Jan-
uary, 1890, in which they held that the evidence failed to show that
the entryman had failed to comply with the timber culture law, and
although the section was not devoid of timber, the land was not ex-
cepted from entry under the rulings of the Department in force atthe
time the entry was made. They recommended that the contest be dis-
missed,

On the 16th of January, 1892, you decided that the plaintiff had
failed to sustain his charges against the entryman, in the matter of
plowing, planting and cultivating trees, but that the amount of natural
timber on the section was such as to render the land not subject to
timber culture entry. You therefore reversed the decision of the
local officers, and held the entry for cancellation, Geddes moved for a
review of said decision, which motion was denied by you on the 25th
of March, 1892. The case is brought to the Department by an appeal
from both of your decisions.

The evidence in the case shows that the section contalns scattered
clumps of live oak, elder, sycamore, and willows. Most of them are
small in size, partaking of the character of brush. To this extent,
therefore, the section was not devoid of timber, and under the rule of
the Department, which was lald down in the decision in the case of
James Spencer (6 L. D., 217), the land in question would not be subject
to entry under the timber culture law. That decision, however, was
rendered on the 11th of October, 1887, and after alluding to the rules
of the Department then in existence, as laid down in the case of Blenk-
ner ». Sloggy (2 L. D, 267), and of Bartch v. Kennedy (3 L. D., 437),
concluded by saying:

The former ruling on this subject will not be allowed to prevail longer. Timber
culture entries made after the date of this decision must be made of land, in the
language of the statube, ¢ devoid of timber.” Entries allowed under the former
ruling, in which the Iaw in other respects has been complied with, will not be af-
fected by the ruling as herein announced.

The entry in the case at bar was made two years and a half before
the decision in the Spencer case was rendered. Both the local officers.
and your office found that the contestant had failed to show that
Geddes had not complied with the provisions of the timber culture law..
His eutry, therefore, is governed by the departmental rulings which
prevailed prior to the Spencer decision. In the .case of Blenkner .
Sloggy this rule was stated as follows:

The question as to whether land is devoid of timber should not be determined by
the exact number of trees growing thereon, but rather by ascertaining whether na-



414 DECISIONS RELATING TO THE PUBLIC LANDS.

“Jure has provided what in time will become an adequate supply for the wants of the
people likely to reside on the section in question.

In the case of Bartch ». Kennedy (3 L. D., 437), this rule was so
broadened as to be stated thus:

The amount of timber required at final proof, should be taken as a guide in deter-
mining whether land is excluded from timber culture entry, on account of the nat-
ural growth of timber existing thereon.

That decision was rendered on the 3d of March, 1885, two months

- and a half prior to the entry of Geddes. The rule therein stated re-

mained in foree until the decision in the Spencer case, two years and a

half later, wherein it was held that the presence of a natural growth of
¢imber on a section precludes timber culture entry therein.

That rule, however, did not long remain in force, as in the case of L.
W. Willis, reported on page 772 of the same volume in which the Spen-
cer decision appears, it was stated that the extreme views expressed in
the Spencer case “ cannot be supported hereafter.” Inthe caseof James
Hair (8 L. D., 467), it was remarked:

The interpretation given in the Spencer case to the words ¢ devoid of timber” is
illiberal, technical, and too literal to conform to the spirit of the act which ought
not to be defeated by ¢ sticking in the bark.”

In the Hair case it was held that the words ¢ prairie land or land de-
void of timber” within the spirit of the act, meant land practically so,
and that no arbitrary rule could be formulated for the goverrment of
@very case.

I think that under the rule of the Department which prevailed
when the entry was made, it was properly allowed, and that the con-
clusion reached by the local officers was correct. The decision ap-
pealed from is therefore reversed.

CONTEST—-REJECTED APPLICATION TO ENTER—RELINQUISHMENT.
SWANSON 2. SIMMONS.

An application to enter land covered by the claim of another is not recognized as
the initiation of a contest against said claim.

No right is secured by an application to enter land included within the entry of
another; and, where an appeal is taken from the rejection of such an applica-
tion, a subsequent relinquishment of the record entry will not inure to the bene-
fit of the applicant.

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 11, 1893,

On the 17th of August, 1891, Alex Swanson applied at the Okla-
homa City land office, Oklahoma Territory, to make homestead entry
for the SE. £ of the NW. £, and lots 3, 4 and 6, Sec. 6, T.11 N, R. 4
W., in said land distriet. His application was rejected for the reason
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that Jeff D. Brown had made homestead entry for said land on the
29th of April, 1889, which entry was still intact.

From such action of the local land officers, Swanson appealed to
your office, alleging that he had reason to believe fthat the entry of
Brown was illegal and void, and that in making it he violated the
statute opening said Territory to settlement; that said Brown had pro-
cured one, S. F. Stenson to initiate a contest against the same on the
30th of January, 1891, for the purpose of deterring others from con-
testing his said illegal entry.

On the 29th of September, 1891, the entry of Brown was canceled
by relinquishment, and on the same day William J. Simmons made
homestead entry for the land. Subsequently he filed a protest against
the allowance of Swanson’s rejected application, setting forth the fact
that he had purchased the improvements of Brown upon the land, and
procured his relinquishment, paying $1500 therefor. That he was an
actual resident upon the land at the time he made his entry, having
purchased the improvements, and went into possession thereof four
days prior to the date of the relinquishment.

Swanson then filed additional specifications of error in connection
with his appeal, urging that an investigation should be made upon his
charge of the collusive contest of Stenson, and insisting that his ap-
plication to enter the land should have been accorded priority of right
the instant Brown’s relinquishment became of record.

On the 21st of March, 1892, you rendered a decision in the case, in
which you sustained the action of the local officers in rejecting the ap-
plication of Swanson to make entry for the land, and allowed the en-
try of Simmons to remain intact. An appeal from your decision brings
the case to the Department. In the notice of appeal, the errors in
your decision are stated as follows:

First.—For the reason that the application of this appellant showed that the
homestead entry of Jeff D. Brown was void in its inception.

Second.—That upon a showing that an entry is void the applicant has the first.
right of entry.

Third.—That the applicant’s application was pending at the date of the relinquish-
ment of Jeff D. Brown, and he therefore being the first legal applicant for the land,
his application shounld have been placed of record.

His first specification of error is disposed of by the statement that
his application to enter the land made no showing whatever as to the
entry of Brown. It was simply an application to make homestead
entry for the land, accompanied by the usual affidavits, and the entry
of Brown was in no manner alluded to therein. In his appeal to your
office, from the action of the local officers, he alluded to Brown’s entry,
but his statements therein cannot be regarded as a * showing” of the
matters alleged.

His ¢ second” proposition is a correct one, in a case where a party
institutes a contest against an entry which is charged, and shown to
be void, after the entryman has had due notice of the charge, and an
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opportunity to defend his entry. His proposition, however, has no
application to this case, as an application to enter land covered by the
claim of another, is not recognized as the initiation of a contest against
said claim. Hyde, et al. v. Warren ¢t al. (156 L. D., 415).

In the case of Maggie Laird (13 L. D., 502), it was held that ‘“an
application to enter land covered by the existing entry of another, con-
fers no right upon the applicant; and if rejected, and appeal taken
from such action, it is not a pending application that will attach on
the cancellation of the previous entry, as the appeal does not operate
to save or create rights not secured by the application itself.”

This disposes of Swanson’s third and last proposition, or specification

“of error in your decision. In his appeal, he seems to have been labor-
ing under the inpression that his case came within the rule that “an
application to enter is equivalent to an actual entry, so far as the rights
of the applicant are concerned, and while pending, withdraws the land
from any other disposition,” but in the case of Goodale ». Olney (13 L.
D., 498), it was held that that rule included only cases in which the
application was improperly refused, and did not apply where the land
was not subject to entry, and no right of the applicant was denied.

In the ease at bar, the land was covered by the entry of Brown at
the time Swanson presented his application. It was therefore not sub-
ject to his entry, and his application was properly rejected, and by its
rejection he was deprived of no right. The decision appealed from is
affirmed.

—

CONFIRMATION-SECTION 7, ACT OF MARCH 3, 1891.
NAWRATH ». LYONS ET AL,

The General Land Office has no jurisdietion over an entry confirmed by section 7, act
of March 3, 1891, except to pass the same to patent as required by said act.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
13, 1693.

‘With your letter of December 17, 1892, was transmitted the record in
the case of Ferdinand Nawrath ». Thomas Lyons and Angus Camp-
bell, involving the pre-emption cash entries made by said Lyons and
Campbell for land within the Las Cruces land district, New Mexico.

On February 20, 1882, Lyons filed declaratory statement No. 261 for
the SE. } of Sec. 2, T. 19 8., R. 19 W,, alleging settlement January 16,
1882, and the same day Campbell filed declaratory statementNo. 262, for
the SW, 1 of the same section, alleging settlement January 15, 1882,
They both made proof and cash entries upon their filings November
22, 1882,

On July 30, 1885, due to failure to properly note the entries by Lyons
and Campbell upon the local office records, Ferdinand Nawrath was



DECISIONS RELATING TO THE PUBLIC LANDS. 47

erroneously permitted to file pre-emption declaratory statement No,
2382, for the 8. 1 of the SW. £ and the S. § of the SE. 1 of said section
2, thus conflicting with each of said entries as to eighty acres.

‘When advised of the conflict, Nawrath filed contest against said en-
tries, alleging failure to comply with the law as to residence and im-
provements, upon which hearing was had, January 24, 1887, the local
officers deciding in favor of the entrymen.

Upon appeal, your decision of May 28, 1892, reversed that of the lo-
cal office, and held the entries by Lyons and Campbell for cancellation.
From this decision an appeal was taken, which you find, in the letter
of transmittal, was filed out of time.

This paper, in addition to urging error in your decision, also pre-
sents grounds for the confirmation of the entries under the 7th section
of the act of March 3, 1891 (26 Stat., 1095), and has since been supple-
mented by abstracts of title showing the conveyance and mortgage of
the lands.

I'rom these papers, it appears that Thomas Lyons and wife, and An-
gus Campbell, by deeds made July 6, 1884, sold and conveyed each of
said tracts embraced in their entries to the Lyons and Campbell Ranch
and Cattle Company, which deeds were recorded July 8, 1885, and said
company, by mortgage executed January 1, 1885, mortgaged all its
property, including these lands, to the Farmers Loan and Trust Com-
pany of New York to securean issne of bonds to the amount of $600,000,
to run for thirty years, with interest at eight per cent payable semi-
annually, and said mortgage appears to be yet outstanding.

This showing has all been made since your decision, although that
was made more than a year after the passage of the confirmatory act.
It would seem, however, from this showing, that these entries were con-
firmed by the act referred to, and, if this be so, you were without juris-
diction in the matter, except to pass the same to patent as required by
said act.

The regularity of the appeal from your decision need not therefore be
considered, and the entire record as now made is herewith returned for
the disposition of the entries under the circular of May 8, 1891 (12 L.
D., 450).

CONFIRMATION—PROCEEDINGS BY THE GOVERNMENT-NOTICE.

UNITED STATES v. LAWRENCE ET AL.

An entry canceled by a decision that becomes final prior to the act of March 3, 1891,
is not confirmed by section 7 of said act.

Where a party applies for a hearing in support of an entry, and the application is
allowed, notice of the time and place fixed therefor is sufficient if given by regis.
tered letter.

In proceedings by the government against an entry, the local officers and special
agent are under no obligation to examine court records to ascertain the interests
of transferees.
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First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the Gen-
eral Land Office, January 16, 1893.

On February 23, 1886, final certificate No. 3056 was issued to Wade
K. Lawrence on his (Jsage entry, made October 28, 1885, for the SW.
3 of Sec. 23, T. 34 8., R. 13 W., Larned, Kansas.

Upon a report of Special Agent Clark 8. Rowe, showing that the
entry was made entirely for speculation, and that the entryman never
settled upon the land, your office, on March 26,1887, held the same for
cancellation.

On May 26, 1887,the entryman, through his attorney, A. W. Ballard,
filed an application for a hearing. This was supported by affidavits,
tending to show that he had complied with the law as to residence and
improvements. It was also shown that he had sold the land on Sep-
tember 21, 1886, to George W. Hayes, for the consideration of $700.
Hayes, the transferee, also joined in the application for a hearing.

On December 23, 1887, you allowed the application; and directed
that the local officers confer with the special agent as to the date for
the hearing. .

The hearing was set for February 15,1888 ; neither claimant nor trans-
feree appeared, either in person or by attorney, but evidence was in-
troduced in behalf of the government. It not appearing that Hayes,
the transferee, had received notice, the hearing was continued to April
2, 1888, The parties again made default, and again the case was con-
tinued, this time to September 4, 1888, at which time no appearance
was made by said Hayes, although notice had been issued. The case
was therenpon closed, and the register and receiver recommended the
entry for cancellation,

According to the recitals in your office letter of September 11, 1890,
notice of this action was served upon the attorney for the claimant,
also upon J. H. Heag and John Moffatt, mortgagees of record. The
facts found by the register and receiver justified a judgment of cancel-
lation, and the time allowed for appeal having fully expired, and no
further action taken thereon, your office, on September 11, 1890, can-
celed the entry, and notice thereof was sent by registered letter, on
October 8, following, to claimant and his attorney, A. W, Ballard, and
to J. H. Hoag and John Moffatt (mortgagees) and George W. Hayes,
transferee of record.

It appears that James H. Hoag brought suit in the district court of
Barber county, to forcelose a mortgage on the land for $487.10; judg-
ment for that amount was obtained on October 4, 1888, and after due
notiee the land was sold at sheriff’s sale, May 24, 1839, for the sum of
$260, and J. B. Watkins became the purchaser, and seven days there-
after (May 31) he received the sheriff’s deed for the land.

On September 2, 1891, Watkins filed his application to have the en-
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try reinstated and passed to patent, under section 7 of the act of March
3, 1891 (26 Stat., 1095).

By your decision of December 11, 1891, you rejected his application,
and he has appealed to this Department.

It is insisted that there has been no final cancellation of this entry,
for the reason that there was no legal service upon the entryman and
the several transferees.

It is seen that Watkins purchased the land May 24,1889. If, at that
time, or at any time prior to the act of March 3,1891, the entry in ques-
tion had been canceled by a decision that became final, then it can not
be confirmed. James Ross, 12 L. D., 446; R. M. Chrisinger, idem.,610;
Niels C. E.Jorgenson, 13 L. D., 33; George Hague, idem., 388.

The statement of facts found by the register and receiver upon which
the entry was finally canceled is not denied; mnor is it contended that
the judgment of cancellation was not warranted from the facts then dis-
closed.

It is insisted, however, that there was no service *warranted by
any rule of practice known to the law,” and therefore the judgment of
the local officers was a nullity. ,

The entry was first held for cancellation (March 26, 1887,) on the re-
port of a special agent. Claimant and transferee then applied for a
hearing, and the application was allowed and the hearing ordered. It
was not necessary then, nor was it the practice, to issue a regular notice
and have it served on them personally or by publication as in ordinary
contest proceedings. It was sufficient to notify them of the hearing
“ Dby registered letter, through the mail, to the last known address,” as
per Practice Rule 17, '

In the circular of October 11, 1884 (3 L. D,, 140), it is said: ¢ Notices
of hearings and decisions in cases when hearings are ordered on behalf
of the government will be registered as a matter of evidence.”

Their application for hearing having been allowed, and they duly no-
tified by registered letter of the time and place thereof, the service was
complete, and the findings of the local officers, on questions of fact un-
appealed from, became final.

Neither Moffatt nor Hoag advised the local office by notice or other.
wise of their interest in the land, but it appears that the special agent
by some means was informed of their interest, and they were notified
(October 8, 1890,) of the judgment of cancellation, as above seen. At
that time, however, Hoag, the first mortgagee, had foreclosed his mort-
gage and the land had been sold by the sheriff to Mr. Watkins.

It does not appear, nor is it claimed, that the local officers or the
special agent had been advised of the foreclosure proceedings or of
Watking’ purchase at the sheriff’s sale. They were not required to
search the records of the district court in order to ascertain who might
have an interest in the land, so that notice might be given of any pro-
ceedings against the entry, and Watkins failed to give notice of his

12771—voL 16——4
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interest, and is not in a position to complain. Van Brunt ». Hammon et
al. 9 L. D., 561; John J, Dean, 10 L. D,, 446,

The application for reinstating and confirming the entry was properly
rejected, and the decision appealed from is affirmed.

FORFEITED RAILROAD LANDS—PRE-EMPTION.
EMERICK 2. BOWLUS ET AL.

Lands embraced within the forfeiture act of September 29, 1890, are by said act taken
out of the operation of the pre-emption law; and seftlers on such lands are lim-
ited by the amendatory act of February 18, 1891, to six months from the pro-
mulgation of instructions within which to make due claim on said lands under
the homestead law.

First Assistant Secretary Ohandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 16, 1893.

On July 26, 1883, Michael Emerick filed declaratory statement No.
4934, for the N. § of the N'W. 1 of Sec. 22, and the S. § of the SW. 4 of
Sec. 153, T. 5 N., R. 36 E., La Grande, Oregon.

The tract in the odd-numbered section was within the limits of the
withdrawal for the benefit of the Northern Pacific Railroad Company,
and Emerick accompanied his declaratory statement with an affidavit
gtating that prior to and at the date of the withdrawal (August 13,
1870,) the land in the odd section (15) was settled upon and claimed by
one J. Willard, and offered to prove the same “on making final proof.”

For reasons hereinafter given, you erroneously notified the register
and receiver that there was no claimn of record for the land, but, act-
ing upon the affidavit accompanying his application, you ordered a
hearing to determine the status of the land (in Seec. 15) on August 13,
1870, the date of the withdrawal.

Lewis Bowlus appeared at the bearing in behalf of the company’s
elaim.

The register and receiver decided, February 11, 1884, that at the date
of the withdrawal no one had made settlement upon or claimed the
land in said seetion 15, and that the “pre-emption claim (of Emerick)
be modified so as to exclude said tract.” He appealed from that find-
ing.

Pending legislation looking to the forfeiture of the grant, your office
held the case in abeyance.

In the meantime, the act of September 29, 1890 (26 Stat., 496), was
passed. By that act, the grant to said company was forfeited as to
the portion thereof covering the land in said section 15.

On November 15, 1890, in reply to the inquiry of J. C. Bowner, Mr,

- Emerick’s attorney, you informed him that the testimony theretofore
presented in the case did not warrant an award of the land (in section
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15) to his client, notwithstanding the forfeiture, and (hat, in the event
the local officers allowed Emerick to publish notice of intention to
make proof, a special notice should be given to Lewis Bowlus (co-de-
fendant with the company), claiming settlement and improvements
upon the land.

On July 31, 1891, the register and receiver transmitted to your office
Emerick’s application to make final proof for the land covered by his
filing. His épplication, which was sworn to and corroborated by two
witnesses, stated that he had continuously occupied the land since he
filed on the same (July 26, 1883); that he had made improvements
thereon of the value of $500, consisting of a house, one story, sixteen.
by twenty feet; two stables, sixteen by sixteen feet, and out-buildings;
that the land was all under fence, and about twenty-five acres in culti-
vation; that e caused notice to be published for taking final proof at
the local office, on January 22, 1884, and appeared there with witnesses
at the time advertised, and one Lewis Bowlus appeared and protested,
on the grounds that the land in section 15 belonged to the Northern
Pacific Railroad Company; that said Bowlus abandoned all claim to
the land in 1886; that he had three different times since 1884 forwarded
his application to malke final proof, and his applications had been re-
fused on account of the contest of said Bowlus.

In the meantime, and on March 20, 1891, James F. Cradick was al-
lowed to make homestead entry for the SW. 1 of said section 15, being
thus in conflict with Emerick’s filing as to the S. 4 of the quarter sec-
tion, and, on October 20, of that year, Cradick filed his motion to in-
tervene in the matter of Emerick’s application to make final proof.

Cradick’s motion was supported by his affidavit, stating that he pur-
chased the 3. 3 of the SW. £ of said section 15, from Lewis Bowlus, in
February, 1883, and that he settled upon and made valuable improve-
ments thereon, with the intention of purchasing the same from the
Northern Pacific Railroad Company. Bowlus also filed his affidavit,
stating that he sold the land at said time to Cradick.

On October 23, 1891, you considered Emerick’s application to make
proofunder his filing and rejected the same, from which judgment an
appeal brings the case to this Department.

An examination of the testimony taken at the hearing shows that the
land in section 15 was not excepted from the withdrawal, and such was
your judgment as above shown. Is was therefore not subject to Em-
erick’s filing.

The land in section 15, being within the withdrawal for the benefit
of said company, and afterwards forfeited by the act of 1890 (supra),
was by that act taken out of the operation of the pre-emption law. Un-
der the 2d section of that act, as amended by the act of February 18,
1891 (26 Stat., 764), settlers on the forfeited lands were limited to six
months, from the date of the promulgation of the instructions there-
under, within which to make ‘“due claim on said lands under the home-
stead law.”
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The six months allowed by the amended act expired August 3,1891,
and Emerick having made no claim to the land in section 15, other
than that in his filing, the same became subject to Cradick’s entry,
made March 20, 1891.

The abstractsof declaratory statements on file in your office show Em-
erick’s filing as first above described ; but, in postingthe same upon your
tract books, there was a misdescription as totherange. The filing was
posted as being for the N. } of the NW, 2 of Sec. 22 and the S. § of the
SW. £ of Sec. 15, T. 5 N,, R. ¢ 35” E., instead of the corresponding num-
bers in range 36, the correct one.

It appears that James Still (not Henry Still) made pre-emption cash
entry No. 1232, on December 1, 1882, for the NW. 1 of Sec. 22, T. 5 N,
R. 35 K., and his entry has (presumably) long since passed to patent,
and your tract books, erroneously showing as above seen that Emer-
ick’s filing covered the N, § of the N'W. % of that section, you by letter
(4G”) of May 16, 1884, canceled his filing by reason of the supposed
confliet, and, in the decision appealed from, you rejected his application
to make proof for the eighty acres in section 22, because of Still’s cash
entry—thus basing your judgment in that respect upon a palpable error
of fact, which your office only was responsible for.

It appears that after the appeal herein was taken, one George Gelse,
on July 7,1892, was permitied to make homestead entry No. 6056 for
the N. § of the NW. { of Sec. 22, T. 5 N,, R. 36 E., being part of the
land covered by Emerick’s filing,

The judgment of your office of May 16, 1884, canceling Emerick’s
filing for its supposed conflict with Still’s entry, was erroneous. The
judgment appealed from, rejecting his application to make final proof
for the land in Sec. 22, “on account of conflict with cash entry No.
1232 of Henry (James) Still” was also erroneous. Said judgments are
therefore set aside. '

You will cause Gelse to be notified that he will be given sixty days
in which to show cause why his entry should not be canceled, and
Emerick permitted to make proof for the land covered thereby.

The decision appealed from is modified.

MINERAL LAND—-AGRICULTURAL CLAIMANT.
THOMAS v. THOMASSON,

Proof of mining upon a tract that has been adjudicated as mineral, and the subse-
quent abandonment of such operations as no longer profitable, leaves with a
mineral claimant the burden of proof to show the present mineral character of
the tract.

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General

Land Office, Januwary 17, 1893,

On February 10, 1885, Francis M. Thomasson filed his pre-emption
declaratory statement for lots 3, 6 and 7 of Sec. 22, T. 16 N., R. 8 E.,
M. D. M., at Sacramento, California.
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On March 17, 1890, he was allowed to make pre-emption cash entry for
said tract. \

Said entry was erroneously allowed, inasmuch as Reuben Thomas had
filed, in September, 1838, a protest against the application of said Thom-
asson, and a petition that the same be set aside.

Said petition was duly corroborated, and further alleged that said
land had been adjudicated to be mineral in character by the Commis-
sioner of the General Lund Office by his letter of August 27,1874, which
affirmed the decision of the local officers rendered August 22, 1872, to
that effect, in the case of James Wearv. Mineral Claimants and Ap-
plicants. That he was one of said claimants and applicants, and that
the contrary character of said land had never been shown. That him-
self and another had, on November 26, 1886, located said lot No. 6 asa
mining claim, designated as “The Union No. 2 Placer Mine” containing
22.99 acres. That he had expended a large amount of money to pro-
tect his mining rights, and had done all that the law required to pre-’
vent its being entered as agricultural land, and was desirous of perfect-
ing his elaim thereto.

A hearing was ordered on said allegation for July 30, 1890, before a
justice of the peace, when the parties appeared and submitted testi-
mony.

In your letter of May 15, 1890, ordering said hearing you state that—
¢ The records of this office show that after a hearing duly held in the
case of James Wear v. Renben Thomas et al., the N. § and SE. 1 of
SW. %, which embraces said lot No. 6, was adjudged mineral by office
letter “ N7 of August 27,1874.” You further state—¢The land having
been adjudged mineral by this office, no entry under the agricultural
laws should have been allowed until the agricultural character of the
land had been first established at a hearing held to determine its char-
acter.” It does not appear that such a hearing had ever been applied
for.

On July 28, 1891, the local officers found that said lots 3 and 7 were
agricultural; also—

That said lot 6, although a portion thereof was at one time valuable as mineral
{and, is no longer valuable as such, the gold-bearing channel or lead therein con-
tained having been entirely worked out, but has an actual value as agricultural
land, and should be so declared, and treated as such.

This decision was affirmed by your letter of March 31,1892, and said
office decision of August 27, 1874, was revoked as far as it affects said
lots.

An appeal now brings thecase before me,

The land in dispute was adjudicated to be mineral in character by
the local officers in the case of Wear ». Thomas on Auguss 22, 1872,
which was affirmed, on appeal, by your oftice on Aungust 27, 1874. No
appeal from the latter deecision was taken, and it became final. The
mineral character so impressed upon the land would-continue nntil said
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former decision should be-set aside, or new proof should be furnished
which would show the character of the land. The burden of proof
would be upon the agricultural claimant attacking its mineral charac-
ter to showthat it wasnolonger mineral. Dornen ». Vaughn (16 L.D., 8).
This land was first adjudged mineral more than twenty years ago, and
was then, doubtless, properly so adjudged. But the evidence shows
that mining operations on the land were abandoned several years later,
for the reason that they did not pay,—the gold had apparently all been
washed out.

In Richards v. Dower (81 Cal.,, 44, 54) it is said—¢* There are large
areas where placer mining was formerly conducted successfully, which
now, after being exhausted of their gold, are held and occupied as
farming and grazing lands under patents from the United States.”
‘Where land has been mined over and abandoned, “there is not a strong
prima facie case in favor of its still being mineral land within the mean-
ing of the law.” Cutting ». Reininghaus (7 L. D., 265).

Thomas did not locate his present mining claim till November 26,
1886, or fourteen years after the first decision was made that the land
was mineral, or nearly two years after Thomasson had filed his declar-
tory statement, and he did not file his protest against Thomasson’s ap-
plication till September, 1888,

Under these circumstances proof that the land had beer mined over,
exhausted of its minerals, and abandoned years ago, was a sufficient
rebuttal of its previous mineral character. There could be no better
test of its non mineral character than a trial by actnal mining, and an
abandonment of the land, because it would no longer pay the mining
expenses. The burden of proof upon these facts shifted upon the pres-
ent mineral claimant to show that at the date of the hearing the land
was more valuable for mineral than for agricultural purposes by the
actual production of mineral as a present fact. Peirano ». Pendola (10
L. D., 536); Berry v. Central Pac. R. R. Co. (15 L. D., 463). This the
mineral claimant has failed to prove. He has not shown the produe-
tion of any mineral whatever from the tracc since his claim was loca-
ted. The land has a positive value for agricultural purposes.

The former decision that the land was mineral in 1872 did not neces-
sarily make it mineral in 1885, when Thomasson filed his declaratory
statement, but put the burden of proof upon him to show that it had
then ceased to be mineral; and inasmuch as he had proved that fact,
he has thereby also established the fact that the land was then of the
character which réndered it subjeet to pre-emption by him.

Thomas does not stand upon any specific claim to the land which
was in existence and adjudicated in 1872, but upon a new mineral
claim initiated after the land had been abandoned for its mineral pro-
duets under former claims, and after theinitiation of Thomasson’s agri-
cultural claim. The filing of the latter’s declaratory statement, fol-
lowed by his declaratory settlement, residence and improvements on
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said land, constitute a ¢ bona fide claim lawfully initiated ” within the
meaning of those terms, as used in the fourth section of the act of March
3, 1891 (26 Stat., 1095). His claim may now be perfected, therefore, in
the same manner as if said act had not been passed.

Your judgment is affirmed.

SCHOOL LAND-—-INDEMNYNITY SELECTION.
GREGG ET AL ». STATE oF COLORADO.

The selection of school indemnity is an acknowledgment on the part of the State
that it has no title to the basis; and the pendency of such selection is sufficient
to charge a purchaser from the State with notice of such defective title.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
17, 1893.

With your letter of October 10, 1892, you transmit a communication
from the register of the state board of land commissioners of the State
of Colorado, with reference to the decision of the Department of August
5, 1892, in the case of Gregg et al. v. Colorado (15 L. D.,131), to which
reference is made, showing how the State and its lessees are affected
by said decision, and asking if the deeision may not be changed or
modified, so as to protect the interest of the State and its assignees.
He states that by reason of information contained in a letter from your
office, under date of February 8, 1884, and supposing the title of the
State to said section sixteen to be perfect, the State leased the W. § of
said section to a Mr. Lay for five years, which terminated in Decem-
ber, 1890, and that the E. 4 of said section is under lease to Robert
Grant, which will not expire until February 24,1894. He further states
that, on July 29, 1889, the right of way, one huandred feet wide, was
granted through a part of said section to the Bessemer Ditch Com-
pany, and, on May 3, 1890, the State sold the entire W. § of said sec-
tion to Edward H. Minchen. '

I can see no reason for modifying or changing the decision of August
5, 1892, holding that the State acquired no title to said seetion, and
that it was only entitled to lands in lien thereof, If the State acquired
no title to said section, it could convey none, and the Department is
powerless to cure the defective title which the State has attempted to
convey.

Although the State exercised acts of ownership over the sixteenth
section prior to and on February 24, 1890, on that day it made indem-
nity selections in lieu of said section sixteen. Up to that date the
State had not attempted to part with its title, but, in less than three
months after selecting indemnity in lien thereof, and while these in-
demnity selections were pending for approval, it sold the W. & of the
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said section to Minchen. Although the State may have been misled
by the action of your office prior to the date of selecting indemnity
land in lien of said section sixteen, at the date of the sale to Minchen
it was claiming that said section was lost to the State by reason of its
reservation for other purposes, and its action in making indemnity
selections therefor was an acknowledgment that it had no title to the
basis. If the State had no title to the sixteenth section, it could con-
vey none fo a transferee, even though he might be an innocent pur-
chaser, but the fact that at the date of the purchase a list of indemnity
selections, in lien of said section, was pending for approval would be
sufficient to charge a purchaser with notice of the defect of title.

I am satisfied that the Department is powerless to grant reliefin the
premises, and I therefore return the papers for file in your office.

HOMESTEAD—SETTLEMENT RIGHATS—FINAL PROOF,
AXERS v. RUuvuDp,

The right of a sebtler to enter the land covered by his improvements is not defeated
by the fact that prior to survey he incorrectly designated the land actually in-
cluded within his claim.

In view of the amendment of Rule 53 of Practice, final proofsubmitted prior thereto,
and during the pendency of a contest, may be considered where due notice has
been given.

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Lanrd Office, January 18, 1893,

The land involved in this controversy is lot 7, in Sec. 4, T. 24 N,, R,
22 E., W. M., North Yakima, Washington, land distriet.

The record shows that Ole Ruud made homestead entry of lots 6, 7,
10 and 11, of said section, township and range, May 12, 1890, (the day
on which the plat of said township was filed in thelocal office) alleging
settlement May 12, 1883.

He published notice to make final proof before the county clerk of
Douglas County, July 14, 1890.

On June 7, 1890, Benjamin F. Akers filed an affidavit of contest, al-
leging that he resided on the NE. 1 of SE. 1, lots 7, 8 and 9, of said
section 4; that he made settlement thereon about April 10, 1884, and
had resided there ever since and improved the same; that he made ap-
plication to enter the same May 28, 1890, and the same was rejected as
to said lot 7, for the reason that Ruud had made homestead entry of
the same; ‘“that said land was not settled upon, improved or culti-
vated at any time prior to or at the time affiant made settlement thereon
by said Ole Ruud or any other person,” and asked for a hearing to de-
termine the rights of the parties to said lot 7. The testimony was
taken before the county auditor of Douglas county, beginning July 21,
1890. :
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The final proof was taken as per advertised notice July 14, and on
July 23d, Ruud made final entry.

On consideration of the testimony taken at the hearing the local
officers decided that Akers had the superior right to lot 7, and recom-
mended that Ruud’s entry be canceled as to said lot and that Akers
be allowed to perfect his ¢ homestead filing ” on the same.

A motion was made for & review, which was overruled when Ruud
appealed, and you, by letter of March 5, 1892, reversed the judgment
and decided that Ruud had the superior right to said lot 7, whereupon
Akers prosecutes this appeal, assigning as error substantially that
your decision is against the law and the evidence.

An examination of the plat of this township shows that section 4,
contains 765.42 acres, it being on the north side of the township, and
when it was surveyed the excess over six hundred and forty acres was
thrown on the north side of the section and numbered as lots 1,2,3 and
4. This necessitated, for the purpose of accurate description, the num-
bering of the other “forties” in the north half of the section as lots,
and they were numbered from 5 to 12 inelusive.

Ruud went to this locality in May, 1833, and before the township in
question was surveyed. During that summer there was a survey made
which, however, proved to be unauthorized and was not approved.
But Ruud made his selection according to this survey of what he con-
sidered “the four center forties” of the section, and broke some ground
onlot 7. He continued to improve it by breaking more ground from
year to year, and fenced it together with the rest of his claim. Akers
joined him in building the line fence between lots 7 and 8. Lot 8 is
owned and improved by Akers, but he has no improvements on 7.

Akers claims that Ruud pointed out to him lot 7 with other land, as
not being within his elaim, and admits that Ruud claimed the ¢ four
center forties.,” I do not think, however, the evidence bears out his
assertion that Ruud told him to take lot 7, but I am of the opinion that
it was lot 2, lying immediately north of lot 7, that Ruud pointed out to
him.

‘When the land was finally surveyed and approved it was found that
the section extended south so that the technical “ four center forties?”
of this section would not include lots 6 and 7. Therefore when Ruud
made his entry he did not take the ¢ four center forties,” but he did
take the identical land that he had always claimed and had improved.
It seems to me that it would be a great injustice to now say that Ruud
should be confined to the land he had orally deseribed in ignorance of
what was or would be the accurate description, and thus forece him to
abandon his improvements. So far as the evidence shows Akers never
made any claim to this lot until it was discovered, when the township
plat was approved, that it was not one of the ¢ four center forties.”
The *“notice of trespass” served on Ruud seems to be the first inti-
mation he had of the intention of Akers to claim this lot 7. TFinding
no error in your deecision, it is affirmed.
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The question raised by the appeal having been disposed bf, it remains
to consider the action of the local officers in approving the final proof
and permitting final entry. Under the rule as it then existed this was
clearly erroneous. Subsequently, however, rule 53, has been amended
(14 L. D., 250), permitting the entryman to make final proof pending
contest, and the practice has been since this amendment where due
notice has been given and the proof is satisfactory, to approve the same,
notwithstanding the irregularity. (Smith ». Chapin, 14 L. D., 411.)
You are therefore directed to examine the proof of Ruud, and if found
satisfactory and regular, you will approve the same,

CONTESTANT—PROCEEDINGS BY THE GOVERNMENT.
IvERSON v». ROBINSON.

The services of a contestant will not be accepted duriny the prosecution of proceed-
ings by the government.

First Assistant Sécretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General
Land Office, January 19, 1893.

On May 18, 1874, Alfred B. Robinson made timber culture entry No.
149 for the SE. } of Sec. 22, T. 94 N,, R. 60 W., Yankton, South
Dakota. <

On December 14, 1882, Frank E. Stevens initiated a contest against
said entry, and after trial, and finding of the register and receiver in
favor of Robinson, you affirmed their action on December 1, 1884.
Your judgment became final because the appeal taken therefrom to the
Department was dismissed (4 L. D., 551, and 5 L. D, 111).

On July 27, 1887, Robinson made final proof, and on July 29, 1837,
the register and receiver rejected it for the reason that it was not
offered within the statutory period of thirteen years, being made seventy
days after the expiration of that time,

On August 27, 1887, Robinson appealed to you from the action of
the register and receiver rejecting his proof, and on September 23,
1887 following, the entry was placed in the hands of a special agent
of your office for investigation, presumably, to determine whether he
had complied with the timber culture law, and what excuse he had to
offer for not submitting his proof within the thirteen years allowed by
law. On April 28, 1890, on the report of said special agent, the entry
was relieved from suspension.

On October 7,1891, Brick Iverson filed an affidavit of contest against
said eutry, alleging substantially that final proof was not submitted
within the period allowed by law; that no timber of any consequence
was growing on the land; that the land has not been properly culti-
vated, but has been abandoned, and that the default still existed.
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The register and receiver rejected his application to contest, for the
reason that Robinson’s appeal from the rejection of his proof was still
pending before you, and on October 15, 1891, Iverson appealed from
their judgment to you and on January 26, 1892, you affirmed their de-
cision. Thereupon he brings the case before me on appeal from your
judgment.

You have not yet acted on Robinson’s appeal, but have suspended
action thereon awaiting action in the Iverson case.

After considering the record, I am of the opinion that the conclusions
in your judgment are correct, for the reason that the investigation con.
ducted by the Department through the special agent, and the investi-
gation by the register and receiver, which led to the rejection of Robin-
son’s proof, the correctness of which still is pending before you, prac-
tically raise the same questions that are raised by the proposed contest,
and that which has been passed upon by the Department or is being
passed upon, will not be allowed to be again brought before it by a
contestant. '

It was decided in the case of McAllister ». Arnold et al. 12 L. D., 520,
that—“ It is as much the duty of this Department to protect those shown
to have complied with the law, against useless contests and harass-
ments, as it is to cancel entries in the hands of those shown not to have
complied with the law.” It was also stated (syllabus)—“A contest will
not be allowed where the grounds alleged therein have been made the
subject of investigation and final decision by the Department.”

Having thus undertaken the investigation of Robinson’s entry the
government during the prosecution of the proceedings will not accept
the services of contestant. Besides, the allegations made in the con-
test affidavit are practically the same as were passed on and deter-
mined by the register and receiver, and which are yet to be passed on
by you. State of Oregon, (13 L. ., 259); United States ». Child (13
L. D., 553).

There is no error in the conclusions reached in your judgment refus-
ing to allow the contest. Said judgment is accordingly affirmed.

SCRIMSHER %. STATE OF CALIFORNIA,*

The departmental deeision of July 14, 1892, 15 L. D., 55, revoked on
review by Secretary Noble, January 19, 1893,

*This action rests on the discovery of an error in the facts as found in the first de-
cision, and hence, does not affect the rule announced therein.
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PRACTICE—-MOTION FOR REVIEW—-APPEAL.
SOMMER . BARLOW BT AL,

One who does not appeal from a decision of the Commissioner, hut files a motion
for review out of time, is not in a position to thereafter complain of a depart-
mental decision that holds the action below final.

There is no rule nor regulation that requires the General Land Office to notify par-
ties, or their attorneys, that the record in a case has been sent to the Department
on appeal.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
19, 1893.

On the 25th of October, 1892, you transmitted a motion on the part
of Thomas J, Moores, for a review of the decision of the Department,
rendered on the 19th of August, 1892, in the case of Christian F. Som-
mer against Lucian H. Barlow and the said Mooves. Theland involved
in the controversy is the NW. 1 of Sec. 27, T. 12 N,, R. 3 W, Oklahoma
City land distriet, Oklahoma.

Samuel L. Beidler made homestead entry for the tract on the 24th of
April, 1839. On the 31st of May, following, Christian F. Sommer filed
an affidavit of contest, alleging that Beidler was not a qualified entry-
man, and on the 27th of June, Lucian H. Barlow filed an affidavit of
contest, alleging that both Beidler and Sommer had violated the Presi-
dent’s proclamation, by entering upon and occupying land in the Ter-
ritory prior to the hour of noon on the 22d of April, 1389.

On the 28th of October, 1889, the entry of Beidler was canceled by
relinquishment, and at the same time Sommer applied to make home-
stead entry for the land. His application was rejected, because the
applicant was in Oklahoma before the 22d of April, 1889. TFrom this
action by the local officers he appealed.

On the 29th of October, Barlow filed a second affidavit against the
entry of Beidler, alleging abandonment and relinquishment. On the
27th of the following month the local officers allowed James H. Carter
to make homestead entry for the land, subject to the right of Sommer.

On the 21st of July, 1890, you ordered a hearing before the local
officers to determine the rights of all the parties. At the time of the
hearing, the affidavit filed by Barlow on the 27th of June, 1889, against
Beidler and Sommer, was dismissed on motion of Carter, on the ground
that it did not state a cause of action. Hethen moved that the affida-
vit filed by Barlow on the 29th of October, 1889, be dismissed, for the
reason that the entry of Beidler was canceled prior to the filing of such
affidavit, This motion was granted, and Barlow appealed from both
devisions. ,

On the 22d of December, 1890, Carter’s entry was canceled by relin-
guishment, and on the same day Welleston H. Belcher made homestead
entry for the land. Belcher’s entry was canceled by relinquishment on
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the 20th of May, 1891, on which day Thomas J. Moores applied to make
entry for the tract. His application was rejected, and he appealed.

The hearing before the local officers, ordered by you, resulted in a
decision in which they held that when Sommer presented his applica-
tion to make homestead entry for the land, on the 28th of Qctober, 1889,
he was a qualified entryman; that the relinquishment of Beidler re-
sulted from Sommer’s contest, and he being the first applicant to make
entry, they recommended that the entry of Belcher be canceled, and
the entry of Sommer allowed. Belcher moved for a rehearing, but his
motion was overruled, for the reason that he relinquished his entry
prior to the decision of said motion.

In a decision rendered by you oun the 224 of July, 1891, you affirmed
the decision of the local officers rendered after the hearing betore them.
This disposed of Sommer’s appeal from their original action rejecting
his application to make entry for the land. You also approved the
action of the local officers in rejecting the application of Moores to en-
ter the tract, and deemed it unnecessary to comsider the appeals of
Barlow, as the awarding of the land to Sommer disposed of all ques-
tions raised thereby.

Barlow appealed, and Moores filed a motion for review of your de-
cision. The motion and affidavits in support thereof, were not trans-
mitted to your office until after you had forwarded the record in the
case to the Department, upon the appeal of Barlow, and such motion
was therefore never considered by you. The papers were transmitted
to the Department, and in the departmental decision, of which & review
is now asked, it was held that inasmuch as the motion was not filed in
your office within the time required by the Rules of Practice, and as
Moores did not appeal from your decision, your action was conclusive
upon him. The appeal of Barlow was then considered, and your de-
cision in the case affirmed.

The grounds upon which a review of departmental decision of Au-
gust 19, 1892, is asked, are that said decision was rendered upon a
misunderstanding of the condition of the record in the cause, or a mis-
apprehension of the rights of the petitioner, whereby it is alleged the
petitioner has been grievously wronged.

With the motion for review, copies of a large number of affidavits
are filed, the affiants nearly all testifying that Sommer was in the Texr-
ritory of Oklahoma prior to the 22d of April, 1889; that he was there
at twelve o’clock, noon, on that day, and that he made settlement on
the land in question immediately after that hour, and in violation of
the statute and the President’s Proclamation.

That question cannot properly be determined upon ex-parte affida-
vits, on a motion for review, but should be settled by contest. So far
as appears, the entry of Sommer has never been contested, and a con-
test could not therefore be prevented, upon the ground that he had
already defended his entry against the same, or similar charges.
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In the argument upon the motion before me, it is claimed that in the
decision complained of, the motion of Moores for a review of your deci-
sion was not considered, nor the appeal filed by him from the rejection
by the local officers of his applieation to enter said tract. In answer
to this, it is only necessary to say that neither of those questions were
before the Department for its consideration. Motions for a review of a
decision are addressed to the court rendering the same. If the judg.
ment of an appellate court upon the question is desired, it is obtained
by appeal, and not by motion for review. As to his appeal from the
action of the local officers, it was addressed to your office, where it had
been considered and decided, and no appeal from your decision had
been taken. »

Complaint is also made that you did not notify Moores, or his attor-
ney, of the fact that you transmitted the record in the case to the De-
partment on the 16th of December, 1891, upon the appeal of Barlow.
To this complaint is added:

That he was entitled to notice of this action, is unguestioned; and that by the
failure to serve the same, his rights have been jeopardized, his title called into ques-
tion, and a decision adverse to his interests secured, appears upon the face of the
record.

The rules and regulations of the Department require you to transmit
the record in all cases where appeals from your decisions are taken,
and allowed by you, to the Department, but I am not aware of any rule
or regulation which requires you to notify the parties or their attorneys
that you have performed your duty in that respect. Most certainly
you are not required to notify a party who has taken no appeal from
your decision.

‘While, in the motion before me, Moores makes a showing which, if
made by a contestant, would require the entryman to satisfactorily de-
fend his entry, or submit to its cancellation, he does not make a show-
ing which entitles him to have the decision complained of reviewed and
reversed. His motion is accordingly denied.

MINERAL CLAIM—AGRICULTURAL ENTRY.
McINTYRE ». YOKUM.

The adverse possession and occupancy of a mineral claimant will not defeat an ag-
ricultural entry where the land is subsequently shown to be non-mineral in
character.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January

19, 1893.

William Melntyre has filed a motion for review of the decision of the
Department of June 21, 1892, in the case of William McIntyre v. A.J,
Yokum, alleging the following grounds of error:

1. Because you held that the adverse possession and occupation of McIntyre was
not sufficient to except the land from Yokum’s entry.

2. Because you held that the case of Bullard ». Flanagan was not a precedent for
Alowing to a claimant under an agricultural system of law credit for his time while
claiming the land under the mineral law.



DECISIONS RELATING TO THE PUBLIC LANDS. 63

The material question in this case is, whether the adverse possession
and occupation of land as a mineral elaim will be sufficient as the initia-
tion of a settlement claim under the pre-emption or homestead laws
after the land has been held to be agricultural land.

In this case Yokum, on March 2,1881, made homestead entry of lots
3 and 4 and the S. 3 of the NW. % of Sec. 4, T. 22 N., R. 3 E., Marys-
ville, California. On March 8, 1881, McIntyre was allowed to make
mineral entry of said lot 4, the tract in controversy, and Yokum con.
tested said entry, and upon said contest it was held that the land was
not mineral, but agricultural land, and said entry was canceled.

Upon the offering of final proof by Yokum on his homestead entry,
Melntyre filed a contest against Yokum’s entry, alleging priority of
settlement as to said lot 4. Upon this contest it was held that the ad-
verse possession of MclIntyre of lot 4 nnder his mineral entry was not
sufficient to defeat the entry of Yokum as agricultural land, it being
held upon the contest of Yokum that the land was not mineral in char-
acter.

I see no error in the decision, nor is the case of Bullard ». Flanagan,
11 L. D., 515, authority for the proposition contended for by contestant,
which is to the effect that the possession of land under a mining claim
is such occupation and settlement as will defeat an adverse claimant
under the homestead or pre-emption law, whose settlement was made
prior to the cancellation of the mineral entry.

In brief, the testimony showed that MecIntyre’s occupancy and pos-
session of lot 4 up to the time of the cancellation of his entry was under
the mining laws. Yokum’s residence and other improvements were
upon lot 3, but his settlement extended to all parts of the claim em-
braced in his entry. This commenced in 1881 and was continued and
existed at the date that McIntyre’s entry was canceled upon Yokum’s -
contest.

No error is assigned as to the finding of facts, and the alleged errors
of law not being sufficient, the motion is denied.

TIMBER CULTURE ENTRY--EXCESSIVE ACREAGE.
KooNTZ v. PITTMAN.

A timber culture entry attacked on account of excessive acreage may be permitted to
stand, where, prior to the day fixed for trial, the relinquishment of another tim-
ber culture entry in the same section leaves the entry under attack no longer
objectionable on account of the area embraced therein.

First Assistant Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the Generaj

Land Office, January 21, 1893.

On May 27, 1889, William 8. Pittman made timber culture entry
(No. 11,627), embracing lots 1, 2 and 3, of Sec. 6, T, 25 8., R. 31 W,
containing 93.70 acres, at Garden City, Kansas. Said section contained
only 458.54 acres, of which one-fourth would embrace 114.635 acres.
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It appears that on September 6, 1887, James Mackin had made tim-
ber culture entry (No. 9655) for lots 5 and 6 of said section, containing
77.24 acres.

On January 13, 1890, Mervin G. Koontz filed an affidavit of contest
against Pittman’s entry, alleging—

That the said entry of the said William 8. Pittman was illegal and void at its in-
ception, and always has been, for the reason that said entryman attempted to ap-
propriate more than one quarter section of land in said section 6, township 25,
range 31. The said entry of William 8. Pittman covers 93.70 acres of said land when
there was a prior entry of one James Mackin made September 6, 1887, No. 9655, cov-
ering lots 5 and 6, amounting to 77.24 acres of land of said section 6, township 25,
range 31, and that said entry of said William 8. Pittman was not made in accord-
ance with the laws of the United States relating to timber culture entries, and he

. has attempted fraudulently and falsely to appropriate more land in said section than
was subject to timber culture entry, and without paying the government price
therefor, and the same is not permitted to be done. That affiant desires to enter
said land under the homestead law.

A hearing upon said charges was ordered for April 12, 1890, at the
local office, when and where the parties appeared and the counsel for
the contestant filed the following motion:

Comes now the plaintiff in the above entitled action and moves the Hon. Register
and Receiver to take judicial knowledge of the records and files of the U. 8. Land
Office at Garden City, Kansas, and from them to ascertain the facts set out in the

plaintiff’s affidavit of contest in this case, and toTender judgment against defendant
therein, and to declare the entry of said defendant canceled.

On April 16, 1890, the defendant filed a brief and argument in answer
to said motion.

On May 20, 1890, the local officers found that the entry of Mackin
‘“was canceled by relinquishment after date of service of notice of con-
test in this case;” but that the entry of Pittman contained more land
than he was allowed by law to enter as a timber claim,inasmuch as the
first section of the act of June 14, 1878 (20 Stat., 113) provides “that
not more than one-quarter of any section shall be thus granted.” That
the entry of Pittman was ¢“illegal and void for the reason that the num-
ber of acres in said lots 1, 2 and 3, with the number of acres in said
Mackin’s entry for lots 5 and 6, aggregate more than one-quarter of
said section 6.” They held, therefore, that Pittman’s entry should be
canceled.

On appeal you held, in letter of February 3, 1892, that—

Mackin having entered 77.24 acres, there remained subject to further timber culture
entry in said section 37.39 acres to betaken as nearas may be in the full amount, but
according to legal subdivisions. . . . . The entry of Pittman of 93.70 acres
during the time of Mackin’s entry of record was prima facie void only as to the ex-
cess over 37.39 acres, and immediately after being made was subject to cancellation
by this office to the extent of such excess (Legan v. Thomas et al., 4 L. D., 441, and
citing 101 U. 8., 260) after inspection of its records and due notice to Pittman ; and
until such action, and final judgment, said entry of Pittman remained as an ap-

propriation of all the land covered thereby. Inview of the fact that prior to
trial and before any judgment upon the validity of Pittman’s entry was an-
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nounced, Mackin had legally relinquished all right and claim to the land covered
by his own timber culture entry, thereby clearing the records of the apparent ob-
Jjection against Pittman’s entry, an abatement by cancellation of the excess in the
entry of Pittman is rendered unnecessary. An entry, though made when the land
was not subject to appropriation, on the removal of the bar may be allowed to stand.
intact. (Schrotberger v. Arnold, 6 L. D.,425) The timber culture entry of Pittman,
for 93.70 acres of land being by legal subdivisions, and, since the relinquishment of
Mackin, not being in excess of the amount of land (114.685 acres) permitted by law
to be taken in the fractional section in question, will stand and remain intact.

An appeal now brings the case before me.

I think the law applicable to the case 1s correctly stated in your de-
cision.

Your judgment is affirmed.

RAILROAD GRANT—ACT OF FORFEITURE—-INDEMNITY.
NEW ORLEANS AND Pacrric Ry. Co. ». PERKINS.

The outstanding certification of lands to the State under the grant of June 3, 1856,
did not prevent reinvestment of title in the United States by the forfeiting aet
of July 14,1870, and is therefore no bar to the selection of such lands as indem-
nity after the passage of said act.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, January
21, 1893.

I have considered the case of the New Orleans Pacifie Railway Com-
pauny ». William Perkins, involving the NE. 1 of Sec. 19, T.5 8., R. 1
E., New Orleans land district, Louisiana.

The land is within the indemunity limits of said railway. The com-
pany selected it as indemnity December 28, 1883, '

At the hearing had in the case, the testimony showed that Perkins
settled about the 1st of June, 1888.

Your decision rejects the company’s claim, on the ground that at the
date of its selection of the tract, the title thereto was vested in the
State of Louisiana, by certification.

The Department held, in the case of said company against Sancier
(14 L. D., 328), that the outstanding certification did not counstitute a
title in the State, nor prevent the reinvestment of the title in the United
States, by force of the forfeiting act of 1870. The certificate was there-
fore no bar to the selection by the company; and as the settlement of
the homestead claimant was snbsequent to the selection, there is noth-
ing before me tending to invalidate such selection.

Your decision is therefore reversed, and the company’s selection will
remain intact upon the records.

12771—voL 16——5
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RIGHT OF WAY—-UNSURVEYED LANDS.
CEUR DALENE RY. AND NAvIicATION CoO.

The survey of the exterior lines of a former Indian reservation does not remove the
lands included therein from the category of nnsurveyed lands, and an applica-
tion therefore, for a railroad right of way across such lands will not be ap-
proved.

Acting Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General Land
Office, January 25, 1893.

I have at hand theletter of the 12th instant from your office enclosing

a map of the definite location of a section of the line of road of the Ceeur
’Alene Railway and Navigation Company, filed for the purpose of se-
curing the benefits of the right of way railroad act of March 3, 1875.

It is stated in the letter that the land covered by ¢ the location falls
within the old Cceur d’Alene Indian reservation, now restored, but
unsurveyed except as to the exterior lines,” and it is recommended that
¢ as the points established enable the company to detinitely locate the
route,” the map be approved.

In reply T have to state that the map has been examined and theline
of route thereon is found to be, in its entirety, on unsurveyed lands.
The fact of the survey of the exteriorlines referred to, does not remove
the lands involved from the category of unsurveyed lands. The map
is not therefore subject to approval and is herewith returned.

WINANS 2. BEIDLER.

Motion for review of departmental decision of September 5, 1892, 15
L. D., 266, denied by Secretary Noble, January 25, 1893,

RAILROAD LANDS—ACT OF MARCH 3, 1887,
CRISWELL 9. WADDINGHAM ET AL.

The right of a grantee of a railroad company to purchase under section 5, act of
March 3, 1887, is not defeated by an application to enter, pending at the passage
of said aet, but subsequently abandoned.

"Acting Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General Land
Office, January 31, 1893.

The SW. % of Sec. 29, T. 2 8., R. 67 W., Denver, Colorado, is within
the limits of the grant to the Union Pacific Railway Company.

It appears that on May 23, 1885, John Daniels applied to make pre-
emption filing for said tract, and, on Mareh 1, 1886, Louis Drumm ap-
plied to make homestead entry thereof.

.
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The local officers having rejected said applieations by reason of the
railroad grant, an appeal was taken, and your office, on February 8,
1887, decided adversely to the company.

On appeal, the Department decided (September 13, 1888,) that cer-
tain filings, made in the year 1866, were of record and prima facie valid
at the date (August 20, 1869,) when the right of the company attached
under its grant, and, because of that fact, the land * was excepted from
the operation of the grant, and the company has no valid claim thereto.” -

It appears that after the said departmental decision was promulgated,
Daniels, being disqualified from the right of pre-emption under Sec.
2260 ot the Revised Statutes, did not further prosecute his claim, and,
for some reasons not explained, Drumm also failed to further prosecute
his elaim.

On July 2, 1889, Richard M. Criswell made homestead entry of the
land, and, on May 15, 1890, he offered commutation proof, and on the
same day he paid $400 for the land, and final certificate No. 15,344 was
duly issued therefor. 4

In the meantime, July 19, 1889, Elizabeth Daniels, and John Dan-
iels, as ¢ attorney in fact for Wilson Waddingham,” gave notice of in-
tention to establish their claim to the land, under the 5th seetion of the
act of March 3, 1887 (24 Stat., 556), said proof to be taken before the
register or receiver, on September 13, 1889, The notice to make proof
was signed by Elizabeth Daniels, claimant, Wilson Waddingham, claim-
ant, and John Daniels, attorney in fact for Wilson Waddingham,
claimant. Notice was duly published, and the proof was taken on the
day fixed.

The exhibits made and the oral testimony taken established the fact
that, on May 29, 1878, John Evans, as trustee of said company, for the
consideration of $1,280, conveyed to Wilson Waddingham, among other
lands, the 8. 4 of See. 29, in said township, Waddingham conveyed
one-half of his interest in the 8. 4 of said Sec. 29 to John Daniels, and
the latter, on January 16, 1885, conveyed said undivided half to his
wife, Elizabeth Daniels.

It was shown that at date of said sale to Waddingham (May 29, 1878),
no one had ever resided upon or occupied the land, or any part of it,
and that no one settled upon the land subsequent to December 1, 1882,
and prior to Marel 3, 1887, It was shown that Waddingham declared
his intention to become a citizen, December 7, 1876, and took out final
papers June 14, 1888, and John Daniels, husband of Elizabeth Daniels,
declared his intention to become a citizen May 23, 1885,

The register and receiver decided that Mr. Waddingham and Mrs.
Daniels were bona fide purchasers from the railroad company, but re-
jected their proof becaunse the lands sought to be purchased were not
government lands, but belonged to the railway company.

On appeal, you, by yQur decision of October 13, 1891, reversed that
action, and held that the proofs submitted by WVaddmgham and Daniels
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satisfactorily establish their right to purchase the land under the 5th
section of said act,and that they should be permitted to make final entry
without further proofs. You also held Criswell’s entry of the land for
cancellation, and his appeal from that judgment brings the case to the
Department.

There are numerous grounds of error assigned, which summed up may
be stated as follows: '

1. Error in holding that proof under the 5th section of the act of March
3, 1887, can be made by an attorney in fact.

2. Error in considering a proof, when the record shows that the home.
stead entryman was living on the land and had no opportunity to cross-
examine the witnesses, or to examine any exhibits made.

3. Error in holding that the act of Mareh 3, 1887, can operate and
embrace this tract of land.

As above seen, Criswell made commutation proof May 15,1890, His
proof showed that he first moved to the land July 8, 1889. It does not
appear that he was present when the proof was taken to show the right
of Waddingham and Daniels, as grantees of the company, to purchase
the land; nor does it appear that he was specially notified of the time
and place of taking that proof.

There is no averment or showing made that he has any claim to the
land, except that growing out of his homestead entry, and no specific
denial that the purchase was made from the company as above set forth,
and no sufficient reasons for requiring the grantees of the company to
make proof anew.

When Criswell first settled on theland, the deed from the trustees of
the company to Waddingham and from the latter to the subsequent
transferees were of record in the recorder’s office of the county in which
the land is situated, as shown by certified transcripts of the records,
and Criswell knew, or might have known, that the company had then
sold the land.

The fact that Drumm’s application to enter the land was pending at
the date of the passage of the act does not, ipso facto, prevent such land
from being subject to the provisions of the act. His application could
only have had that effect had he subsequently prosecuted his claim in
compliance with law, but having abandoned his elaim, no one else can
set up such claim in order to defeat the right of purchase under the act.

It satisfactorily appears that Waddingham and Mrs. Daniels are
grantees of the railroad company; that they are citizens of the United
States; that the land was of the numbered sections prescribed in the
grant, was excepted therefrom, and sold by the company as part of the
grant, and was coterminous with the constructed parts of the road.

Under the 5th section of said act, the rights of the grantees, under
the facts above given, are superior to those of Criswell, and they will
be allowed to make final entry on the proofs already made, and Cris-
well’s entry will be canceled.

The decision appealed from is affirmed.
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PATENT-SALE—MISDESCRIPTION OF LAND.
JOHNSON ». CLARK.

An entry will not be allowed to embrace a tract actually sold by the government to
anotherin accordance with the claim of such purchaser, but not deseribed in the
patent subsequently issued to him.

Acting Secretary Chandler to the Commissioner of the General Land .
Office, January 31, 1893.

On June 21, 1887, Almas L. Clark made homestead entry No. 12,661,
for the NE. fractional quarter, the N. & of the SE. £, and the SW. £ ot
the SE. 1, Sec. 6, T. 20 N, R. 16 W., Harrison, Arkansas.

By your decision of Mareh 8, 1392, you held his entry for cancellation
as to the NE,  fractional quarter of said section, and he has appealed
from that judgment.

This is the second time this case has been before the Department.
Your office tirst held the entry for cancellation as to said tract, on
April 24, 1889, because of the conflict therewith of cash entry, No. 6161,
made by Thomas Terry, March 21, 1853, upon which patent was issued
March 1, 18835. TUpon appeal, the Department decided, August 28,
1890, that there was a mistake in both the entry and patent of Terry,
and it was accordingly directed that Clark’s entry be reinstated, and
4 hearing be had to determine the rights of the respective claimants to
the land. .

Mary F. Johnson, claiming title to the land, as transferee under
Terry’s patent, was present at the hearing, and contested Clark’s claim
to the land.

The register and receiver found that the land intended to be entered
by Thomas Terry was the NE. fractional quarter of Sec. 6, instead ot
the N. § of the NW, fractional quarter of said section, as described in
his patent,.

In the decision appealed from you concurred in that finding, and con-
strued the description in the patent to be for the NE. fractional quarter
of said Sec. 6, and accordingly held Clark’s entry for cancellation as to
that tract.

Terry’s patent was issued for ¢ the north fractional half of the north-
west fractional quarter (south bank of White River) of section six, in
township twenty north of range sixteen west, in district of lands sub-
Ject to sale at Batesville, Arkansas, containing forty-one and eighty-six
hundredths of an acre.”

A careful examination of the official plats shows that there isno such
tract of land in said section six as the north half of the northwest frae-
tional quarter.

It appears that there are two separate surveys, one south and one
north of White river—both surveys closing on the river, which was
meandered. The land in controversy is north of and within the bend
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of White river, and is represented by a plat approved May 21, 1852.
The land south of White river is represented by the plat approved Au-
gust 4, 1841. Both of these surveys have lands represented by a town-
ship marked 20 north, range 16 west. Section six of the township of
that number south of the river has no lands the description of which
corresponds to the land in controversy. Section six of . the township
north of the river has a tract of land bordering on the riverin the north-
east quarter covering an area of 41.86 acres. It is the only tract in the
section of that acreage, and corresponds to the exact number of acres
covered by Terry’s patent.

The register and receiver reported to your office that Terry’s applica-
tion for the land was not on file in the local office.

The description of the land as shown in the patent follows the deserip-
tion in the final certificate, the expression ¢« south bank of White river,”
as written in the face of the patent, is found in brackets on the mar-
gin of the certificate. In the face of the final receipt, the land is de-
seribed as in the patent. except that it is designated as being on “left
bank of White river.” The land being in the bend of the rn er,which at
that point runs almost due west, was deseribed as being on the “gsouth
bank of White river,” It is south of the river at that point, but north
of the river in its general trend to the southeast, and therefore on the
left bank.

You concur in the finding of the local officers that the land in con-
troversy is the identical tract intended to be entered by Terry; that it
was so regarded by Mr. Terry, during his lifetime, and by his heirs and
grantees after his death. I have examined the testimony taken at the
hearing, and concur in that finding.

‘While there is no land in said section six corresponding to the de-
seription in the patent, yet, from the facts above given, it is seen that
the land intended to be conveyed by the patent is the identical land in
controversy, and can not possibly be any other tract, there being no
northwest fractional part in that section. '

Clark’s entry will therefore be canceled as to the northeast fractional
quarter of said section six, and the decision appealed from is accord-
ingly affirmed.

RAILROAD GRANT—ADJUSTMENT.
MoBILE AND GIRARD R. R. Co.

Instructions with respect to the adjustment of the grant to the Mobile and Girard
railroad company under the act of September 29, 1890.

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, Feb.
ruary 1, 1893.

T have considered the matter of the adjustment of the grant for the
Mobile and Girard Railroad Company, under the act of September 29,
1890 (26 Stat., 496), as presented in your report of October 25, 1892,

i
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The 8th section of said act provides:

That the Mobile and Girard Railroad Company, of Alabama, shall be entitled t¢
the quantity of land earned by the construction of its road from Girard to Troy, &
a distance of eight-four miles. And the Secretary of the Interior in making settle-
ment and certifying to or for the benefit of the said eompany the lands earned
thereby shall include therein all the lands sold, conveyed or otherwise disposed of
by said company not to exceed the total awwount earned by said company as afore-
said. And the title of the purchasers to all such lands are hereby confirmed so far
a8 the United States are concerned.

But such setflement and certification shall not include any lands upon which
there were bona fide pre-emptors or homestead claims on the first day of Janu-
ary, eighteen hundred and ninety, arising or asserted by actual occupation of the
land under color of the laws of the United States.

The right hereby given to the said railroad company is conditioned that it shall
within ninety days from the passage of this act, by resolution of its board of direc-
tors, duly accept the provisions of the same aud file with the Secretary of the Inte-
rior a valid relinquishment of all said company’s interest, right, title, and claim in
and to all such lands within the limits of its grant, as have heretofore been sold by the
officers of the United States for cash, where the government still retains the pur-
chase money, or with the allowance or approval of such officers have lieen entered -
in good faith nnider the pre-emption or homestead laws, or as are. elaimed under
the homestead or pre-emption laws as aforesaid, and the right and title of the per-
sons holding or claiming any such lands under such sales or entries are hereby con-
firmeil, and all such claims under the pre-emption or homestead laws may be per-
fected as provided by law. Said company to have the right to select other lands, as
near as practicable to constructed road, and within indemnity limits in lien of the
lands so relinquished. And the title of the United States is hereby relinquished in
favor of all persons holding under any sales by the local land officers, of the lands in
the granted limits of the Alabama and Florida Railroad grant, where the United
States sbill retains the purchase money but without liability on the part of the
- United States.

The matters preliminary to the adjustment of this grant were consid-
ered in departmental decision of February 7, 1891 (12 L. D., 117), in
whieh it was held that the above section constitutes a legislative limi-
tation upon the grant made by the act of June 3, 1856 (11 Stat., 17), to
aid in the construction of the Mobile and Girard Railroad, and that the
company is entitled only to the quantity of lands earned by the con-
struction of the road from Girard to Troy, a distance of eighty-four
miles, which, upon examination, you report to be 302,233.79 acres.

It appears, however, that during the years 1860 and 1861 this entire
grant from Girard to Mobile was practically adjusted: thatis, all avail-
able lands within the limits of the grant were certified to the State on
account thereof, in all amounting to 504,167.11 acres. '

Under the terms of the adjustment provided for in the section before
quoted, the lands to be allotted the company are to include the lands
sold or otherwise disposed of by the company, not to exceed the total
amount earned, and ¢ shall notinclude any lands upon which there were
bona fide pre-einptors, or homestead claims, on the first day of January,
eighteen hundred and ninety, arising or asserted by actual occupation
ot the land under color of the laws of the United States.”

It is therefore first necessary to identify the excluded lands, and then
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to allot to the company, from the sold lands, an amount equal to the
quantity earned by the construction before referred to.

To this end, you were instructed to publish a notice requiring the
claimants under the laws of the United States to come forward, within
ninety days, and make known their claims, by filing 1LeCesSary papers
to establish the same, and to call upon the company to file a stavement,
properly certified to, of the lands sold, conveyed, or otherwise disposed
of by the company, the date of each sale or disposition to be given, and
the name of the transferee.

- It is upon the result of this notice and call that your report is made,
and therefrom it appears that 572 persons asserted claims under the
homestead laws, alleging settlement prior to or on January 1, 1890,
said applications aggregating 78,988.14 acres.

The showings made before the local officers and your office evidence
the following sales or dispositions by the company, viz:

To Abram Edwards...... ... .. . ... ... .. ..., 74, 203. 98
“ Joshua V. Thompson ................. cooiiionunn. 118, 807. 29
o James A Carney. ... e 19, 578. 49
*¢ IUINETOUS POIrSONS . - o vt e e i i e emee e aaaaaannns 16, 233. 50
“ claims not reported by company ........._.......... 720, 49
¢ sales reported, but no claim presented ................ 13,108. 51
“ Van Kirk Construetion Company -.................... 262, 994. 49

‘ 505, 646. 75
 Less duplication in Edwards and other sales .......... 1,479, 64
Total sales ....... ... ... ..i.iil.... 504, 167.11

As all the lands certified on acconnt of the grant were sold or dis-
posed of by the company, the homestead applications necessarily con-
flicted with a sale or disposition, and numerous protests were filed
against said applications by claimants under sales made by the com-
pany, but, as the grant can be fully satisfied without including any of
the lands claimed in these applications, a consideration of said protests
is unnecessary.

The reported sales and dispositions largely exceed the amount earned,
after deducting all the lands claimed by the homestead applicants,
and it would be necessary to decide between the several claimants
under the sales and dispositions made by the company, in order to allot
the lands on account of the grant, were it not for the agreement entered
into between the large purchasers to pro rate as between themselves
the lands according to their several holdings, and to abide by the de-
cision of this Department upon the small holdings under sales made
by the company.

As to these small holdings you report that:

There are more than 450 individual purchasers from the company (désignated as
minor sales, per lists No. 6 and 7 aggregating 29,342.01 acres) in whose favor, I be~
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lieve, an exception to the rule above stated should be made, for the reason that they
purchased these small tlacts, paying the market price therefor, for the purpose of
occupation, cultivation and a home; while those who purchased large nuantities in
bulk, as Edwards, Thompson, Carney, and the Van Kirk Company did so purely for
speculative purposes, and paying therefor a nominal price compared with the indi-
vidual parchasers, and for the further reason that the average acreage per capita of
these minor purchasers is sixty, and to apply the prineiple of pro-rating to them
would reduce the amount of nine-tenths of these purchasers below the quantity con-
tained in the least official subdivision of a section. I am, therefore, of the opinion
that all of these purchasers of the class above mentioned, should be protected to the
extent of one hundred and sixty acres, the amount which they each would be en-
titled under the provision of the eighth section, if they were asserting their rights
as settlers under the homestead or pre-emption laws. It seems to me thata much
stronger reason exists why they should be protected to the extent above stated then
mere squatters on lands owned at the time by the company, for they are not only
settlers upon the lands prior to January 1, 1890, but all had long before that time
purchased from the company, at full value, the small holdings now claimed, and
have made it their homes since such purchase; many of whom have valuable im-
provements thereon. It was just this class of purchasers, I am led to believe, that
Congress intended to protect to the full extent of their holdings.

I approve of this recommendation, and all such holdings should be
included in the allotment to the company, uuless they conflict with the
applications of those claiming on January 1, 1890,

From a careful review of the section in question, I am of the opinion
that its effect is to confirm to the company an amount of land equal to
that earned by the building of the road from (tirard to Troy, or
302,233.79 acres, and, as the large purchasers have agreed to pro-rate
the amount remaining, after deducting the small holdings, the inte-
rests of the United States are in no wise prejudiced. Without passing
upon the validity of any of these claims, you are directed to make due
call upon the purchasers to malke selection of their respective amounts
under their agreement within thirty days, in order to identify the lands
that will be patented to the Company.

As it appears that the sales made by the Lompfmy conflict, directions
should be given to prevent duplications in the matter of the selections,
and to avoid contlicts with the claims presented under the homestead -
laws. Upou receipt thereof, you will be enabled to allot the lands to
the company, and upon the approval of that allotment by this Depart-
ment, the grant, and all claimants thereunder, will be fully satisfied,
and the remaining lands within the grant may then be restored under
the terms of the forfeiture act.

Mueh time has already elapsed since the passage of the forfeiture
act, and the interests of the public demand a speedy restoration of
the lands not confirmed to the company and its purchasers.
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OKLAHOMA TOWNSITES-PROBATE JUDGE-TRUSTEE.
CHOCcTAW Ci1Yy TOWNSITE.

The provisions of section 17, act of March 3, 1891, do not change nor repeal the acts
of May 2, 1890, and May 14, 1890, so far as relates to townsite entries within the
limits of lands opened to settlement on April 22, 1889, and the only manner,
therefore, in which townsites can be entered therein, is through the medium of
a board of trustees. ‘

Secretary Noble to the Commissioner of the General Land Office, Feb-
ruary 1, 1893,

I have considered the appeal of Seymour A, Stewart, probate judge
of Oklahoma county, Oklahoma Territory, from your decision of Sep-
tember 10, 1892, holding for cancellation cash entry No. 628, made by
said Stewart as probate judge, for the E. § of SE. £ of Sec. 23, T. 12 N,,
R. 1 W., Oklahoma, in trust for the use and benefit of the occupants
thereof, as the townsite of Choctaw City, according to their respective
interests, as provided in section 2387, Revised Statutes.

The tract of land in questioa is located within the limits of the lands
opened to settlement by proclamation of the President on April 22,
1889,

In your decision you say:

Inasmuch as the act of May 14, 1890, (26 Stat., 109) is the only townsite law appli-
cable to that portion of Oklahoma within which the above described tract of land
lies, the entry before me is illegal and is, therefore, hereby held for cancellation.

The appeal is based upon the ground of error in holding that the act
of May 14, 1890, is the only townsite law applicable to the portion of
Oklahoma in which the town of Choctaw City is located, and that you

~ failed to give legal eftect to the act of March 3, 1891.

The aet of March 2, 1889, (25 Stat., 980-1004) opening the Oklahoma
lands to settlement, provided that:

The Secretary of the Interior may, after said proclamation, and not before, permit
entry of said lands for townsites under sections twenty-three hundred and eighty -
seven and twenty-three hundred and eighty-eight, of the Revised Statutes, but neo
such entry shall embrace more than one half section of land.

Said section 2387, Revised Statutes, provides that if a town is unin-
corporated the judge of the county court may make townsite entry for
the benefit of the parties in interest, but uponthe opening of Oklahoma,
lands on April 22, 1889, there was no such officer as judge of the county
court or probate judge, in existence in said Territory, to file such ap-
plication, hence applications to make townsite entries were filed by un-
authorized parties selected by the settlers upon the tracts chosen as
townsites; said applications, however, were not acted upon by the Land
Department.

This condition of affairs continued until May 2, 1890, when Congress
passed an act entitled: “An Act to provide a temporary government
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for the Territory of Oklahoma, to enlarge the jurisdiction of the United
States Court in the Indian Territory, and for other purposes.” (26
Stat., SL).

The 9th section of said act provides:

That the judicial power of said Territory shall be vested in a supreme court, d‘is-
trict courts, probate courts, and justices of the peace.

This is the first recognition of the office of probate judge in said
Territory, and by the act of the territorial legislature, which took
effect December 25, 1890, judges of probate were given authority to
make entries of the public lands for townsite purposes.

Section 22 of the above cited act of May 2, 1890, provides:

That the provision of title thirty-two, chapter eight of the Revised Statutes of
the United States, relating to “reservation and sale of townsites on the public
lands ” shall apply to the lands open, or to be opened to settlement in the Territory
of Oklahoma, except those opened to settlement by the proclamation of the Presi-
dent on the twenty-second day of April, eighteen hundred and eighty-nine.

No argument would seem to be necessary to sustain the proposition,
that unless further legislation has provided a means by which a pro-
bate judge may act as an entryman of land for townsite purposes with-
in the limits of the lands designated in the proclamation of the Presi-
dent above referred to, such officer can not thus act. Has there been
such legislation?

The contention of appellant is, that such legislation was enacted
by the second proviso to section 17 of the act of March 3, 1891, (26
Stat., 989-1026), which is as follows:

That in addition to the jurisdietion granted to the probate courts and the judges
thereof in Oklahoma Territory by Legislative enactments, which enactments are
hereby ratified, the probate judges of said Territory are hereby granted such juris-

diction in townsite matters, and under such regulations as are provided by the laws
of the State of Kansas.

By reference to the act of May 2, 1890, above cited, and which fixed
the boundaries of Oklahoma Territory, it will be seen that said Terri-
tory embraced a vast area of country in addition to that opened to set-
tlement by proclamation of the President April 22, 1889, which tract
has been expressly reserved from the operation of the townsite laws,
under which a judge of the county, or the probate judge, might make
entry.

There was, however, no intention on the part of Co